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C611 hash it out totorrow. 

MR, HERBERT.: Thank you, Your Honor. 

TIJE COURT: All tight, let's get the jury out 

then. 

We. are. ready. 

COURT OFFICER: All rise. Jury entering. 

(At this titue, the jury entered the courtroom) 

THE COURT: Thank you, jurors, !thank you for 

your patience_ To accomModate the schedule of the 

10• 	physician witness, we are going to interrupt the 

	

13 	plaintiff's testitony at this time. It is wAth the consent 

	

12 	of the parties and the Court, so it is okay, perfectly 

	

13 	fine. We will pick up on the plaintiff's examination when 

	

14 	we are done with this witness. 

	

15 	 You may call that witness at this time. 

	

16 	 MR. HERBERT: Thank you, Your Honor. At this 

	

17 	time I call Dr. Do V Berkowitz. 

	

18 	 COURT OFFICER: Step up. Remain standtng. Face 

	

19 	the clerk, 

	

20 	 THE CLERK: Raise yoUr right handy please. 

	

21 	 nb you solemnly swear or affirm that the 

	

22 	testimony you are about to give the Court and jury will be 

	

23 	the truth, the whele truth and nothing but the truth? 

	

21 	 THE WITNESS: T so affirm. 

	

25 	DR. DOV BERKOWITZ, having been called as a 



229 

DTRECT - DR. BERKOWITZ - HERBERT 	 200 

witnesS by and on behalf of the Plaintiff, having first been 

duly affirmed, was examined and testifled as follows: 

THE CLERK: Thank you. Please be seated_ 

THE WITNESS: Thank you. 

CLERK: May we have your name and business 

address, please? 

THE WITNESS 	First name is D-O-V, Dolt. Last 

nrne iS Berkowitz, B-E-R-K-O-W-T-T-Z,  80-02 Kew Gardens 

Road, Kew Gardens 11415. 

10 	 THE CLERK: Thank you. 

ii 	 THE COURT: Good afternoon, sir.. These lawyers 

12 	are going to ask you some questions. What I want you to do 

13 	is to lot them finish the question before you answer, so 

1: 	you are not speaking at the same time_ Please speak loud 

enough so everyone can hear you, The lawyer who is not 

6 	asking questions is seated_ When you see that lawyer stand 

11 	up, it is because he is going to say "objection". SO when 

18 	you see him stand up, just stop and look to me. 1 will let 

19 	you know whether you should answer that pending question. 

20 	 THE WITNESS: Yes, sir. 

21 	 THE COURT: Is there a cup of water up there? 

22 	 THE WITNESS: Yes, sir. 

25 	 THE COURT: We are actually going to refill it 

24 	from time to time. 

25 	 THE WITNESS: Okay, 



230 

DIRECT - DR. BERKOWITZ - HERBERT 	 201 

THE COURT: You may inquire_ 

MR. HERBERT: Thank you, Your Honor. 

DIRECT EXAMINATION 

BY MR, HERBERT: 

Q. 	Good afternoon, doctor. 

A. 	Good afternoon. 

Q. 	I am going to ask you to please keep your voice up so 

everyone in the courtroom can hear you, okay? 

A. 	No problem- 

10 	O. 	Thank you, doctor. Doctor, arc you a physician 

11 	licensed to practice medicine it the State of New York? 

12 	A. 	Yes, 

13 	Q. 	When did you become so licensed? 

14 	A. 	In, let's see, 19 	let me just think for a second. 

15 	So many years ago. Thirty years ago already. So I think in 

16 	1979, 1960 Would be about the time that I was licensed. 

17 	Q. 	And, doctor. , where did: you go to college? 

18 	A. 	City University of New York. 

19 	Q, 	And you graduated with a degree in what? 

20 	A. 	In BS, Bachelor of Science. 

21 	Q. 	'When did you graduate? 

22 	A. 	11/1  1975. 

23 	Q. 	After graduation where did you go next? 

24 	A. 	To the Mount Sinai School of Medicine here in 

2_ 	New 'York. 
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Q. 	04d you complete that medical school? 

A, 	Yes. 

Q.After completion of medical, school, what did you do 

next professionally? 

A. 	Well, I stayed at the Mount Sinai institution_ It had 

a very well known, hospital, Mount Sinai Hospital in New York. 

enjoyed that hospital very much. So I stayed on there for 

internship and residency in the field of orthopedic surgery. 

Q. 	Doctor, does every doctor have to do residency, or 

internship, or stay on? 

A. 	No. I mean, it depends what you want to do in life, 

so to speak. You may just want to have a medical degree and go 

on to other things for whatever reason and not want to complete 

your training. But completion of medical School does net in 

any way complete your training. It gives you a, degree. But 

you need to go through an internship and a residency to gain 

Lb° experience level necessary to actually treat patients. 

Q. 	What W85 your internship and your residency? What did 

you specialize in, doctor? 

A. 	I specialized in the field of orthopedic surgery which 

21 	is the field. and study and treatment. of problems related to 

22 	muscles, bones and joints. Fuld. when I finished the residency, 

23 	I took an additional year of fellowship training in, at that 

24 	time what was a new field, today it is the most commonly.  done 

25 	procedure in the states today. But at that time it was a neW 
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field called arthroscopic surgery which back in those days was. 

the beginning of the field, where you. would put :little cameras 

inside joints as opposed to making large incisions. It was a 

tremendous advance in those days 	Today it's,of course, very 

common and most people are familiar already with it 

So I did an extra year of that. But the idea was the 

field of orthopedic surgery is treating all problems related to 

muscle, bones and joints and the field of arthrosoopic surgery 

	

9 	and my particular specialty of shoulder and knee problems I 

	

10 	started to do .more effort in that direction as the years went 

	

11 	by. 

	

12 	Q. 	Doctor, arc you a board-  certified physician? 

	

13 	A. 	Yes. 

	

14 	Q. 	And what specialty or specialties of medicine are you 

	

15 	board. certified? 

	

16 	A. 	In the field of orthopedic surgery, 

	

17 	Q. 	Doctor, what does it mean, to be a board certified 

18 physician? 

	

19 	A.. 	The. American Board of Orthopedic Surgeons are the only 

	

20 	empowered division in this country licensed to create a test to 

	

21 	test candidates who have finished an accredited residency in. 

	

22 	this country in. .he field of orthopedics. You take that test 

	

23 	which is not a picnic. And. if you. pass that test, you get 

24 	their diploma or you become a. diplomate of the American. Board 

25 	of Orthopedic Surgeons. 
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In order to obtain that diploma, you have a two-day 

Lest that involves an eight-hour written examination and the 

day before you have an examination by five different 

specialists in any specialty within orthopedics. Could be 

trauma, could be totai joint displaceMent, could be sports 

medicine, could. be  pediatric medicine_ It could be any type of 

area within orthopedics. You are :really not sure what's going 

to happen. Like in the Supreme: Court, everybody fires 

questions at you from different directions at the same time. 

And so if you can survive that first day, then you go onto the 

second day of the eight-hour test, And between those two days 

the American Boards come up with. 4 minimum score, 80 to speak,. 

If yoU teach that score, you get their diplomate statUs. 

So in ordeT to become a board certified surgeon, you 

need to complete the residency, After medica1 school T did an 

ext:ra year of fellowship which is not required. And then in 

those days you had to wait two years in order to first sit for 

the board4:1. I did that in 1986, I took them for the first time 

and I was lucky I passed it on the first shot. So it was quite 

an effort_ Its a big thing to get that diploma, 

MR. HERURT: Your Honor, I would like to move 

Dr. Berkowitz in as a qualified expert in orthopedic 

surgery, 

THE COURT: He i 

MR. HERBERT: Thank you, Your Honor.. 
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Q 	Doctor, are you a meMber Of any medical societies? 

A. 	State of New York Medical Society. 

3. 	O. 	Doctor, Can you approximate for me how many shoulders 

you have examined in your lifetime? 

A. 	Well, now I am approaching 30 years in practice. Of 

course, when, you start out in, your first year, you ake not as 

busy as you might be 30 years later It takes time to build-up 

a practice like any other thing. So today, 19 -- or let's say 

in the year 20)3, I Am seeing thousands and thousands or 

la 	patients maybe 2,000 Co 3,000 patients a year, of which it is 

11 	equally divided between shoulders and knees. So that I will be 

12 	seeing over a thousand patients a year of shoulder problems and 

13 	over a thousand patients a year of knee problems, well over a 

14 	thousand, it's in the thousands per year. Of course, 30 years 

15 	ago it might have been 150 for the whole year, but it grows. 

16 	So I think. I can legitimately say in the last tea years 1 have 

17 	been seeing thousands of patients a year for shoulders and 

18 	thousands of patients for knees. 

i!) Q 	Now, doctor, have you h d occasion before to testify 

20 	in court? 

21 	A. 	Yes. 

22 	Q. 	Would you approximate for the ladies and gentlemen of 

23 	the jury how many times you have testified in court before? 

24 	 I think it's -- I am testifying only for patients that 

25 	I am actually treating with one exception. I testify probably 
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somewhere around. seven:, eight times a year, if that 	how many 

patients I need to come in to testify for, but only on my own 

patients that I have treated and operated-  on. So those are the 

patients that I testified_ 

Q. 	You Mentioned something that want to clarify. You 

mentioned only for your patients, 

A. 	Yes. 

Q- 	Can you explain what that means? 

A. 	Well, there are many people that spend their time and 

10 	their Careers in being professional witnesses. So the.),  reach. 

11 	point .in their career maybe they can't practice anymore for 

12 	
whatever 1=eason and they get hired by law firms to review other 

13 	people's cases and testify on behalf of either the insurance 

14 	company or on behalf of the patient. 

1.5 	 MR. NEWMAN: Objection. Move to strike. 

16 	 THE. COURT: That's okay. Continue, 

17. 	 THE,  WITNESS: That tends to happen to people 

later in their careers. Maybe they can't operate any more 

9- 

20 	 T14E COURT: Tell Us about you 

21 	 THE WITNESS: I am not interested in being a 

22 	professional. witness. I am actually a treating doctor. I 

23 	treat patients and I operate on patients and T don't have 

24 	the time. Even coming here today is an extremely difficult 

25 	thing for me. 
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MR. NEWMAN: Objection. 

THE COURT: Sustained. 

Q. 	Doctor, can you describe your current practice today? 

A. 	'My current practice is the following. i see patients. 

I have a number of different offices. I see patients. I 

examine them: I take their history.  first. I examine them and 

then I prescribe treatment. The majority of that treatment is 

non-operative- The majority' of that treatment is conservative. 

There is a certain percentage of patients that win naturally 

need surgery and then I do the surgery myself. 

Q. 	Doc:or, what would you be doing if you were not here 

today testifying in court this afternoon? 

'.11/2 	I would be in my Queens office right now seeing quite 

a few patients. 

Q. 	Did you have to cancel those patients because you are 

here with us today? 

A. Absolutely. 

Q. 	Doctor, are you being compensated for your time here 

tOday away from your practice? 

Yes, sir. 

Q. 	Doctor-, how much are you being compensated to be with 

US this afternoon and to cancel your patients? 

A. 	$8,500. 

-Q, 	Doctor, did there come a time that you had seen a 

tient by the name of .Jessica iovino? 
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A. 	Yes. 

Q. 
	Doctor., when was that? 

A. 	November 14, 2011. 

Q. 
	flow, doctor, I see you are looking down. Are those 

your records you are looking at? 

Yes, 

7 	Q. Nere those records kept, in the ordinary course, of your 

business? 

A. 	Yes. 

10 	Q. 	Were those records documented at the time you saw the 

11 PsUent? 

12 	A. 	Of coUrs 

15 	Q. 	And are those records kept and maintained In
.  your 

14 office? 

15 	A. 	Yes. 

16 	 MR. HERBERT; Your Honor, 1 would like to move 

17 	his file into evidence. 
	had an opportunity to show 

1 
	counsel his file before Or. Berkowitz took the stand. 

19 
	 MR. NEWMAN; Judge, I need to $ee the file aga5n 

20 	because I don't recall every piece of paper. 

21 	 THE COURT: So is it admissible subject to 

22 	redactions? 

23 	 MR. NEWMAN: Yes. 

2 	 THE COURT: All right, it is admitted subject to 

25 	redactions. IL is Exhibit 4. 
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(Received and; marked, Plaintiff's Exhibit 4 in, 

evidence) 

Q. 	If you need to look at the documents, you can, 

Berkowitz. 

A. 	Thank you. 

Q. 	Doctor, did there come a time that you saw the patient 

by the name of :Jessica Tovino? 

A. 	Yes. 

Q. 	And, doctor, when was that? 

10 	A. 	November 14, 2011. 

11 	Q. 	Now, doctor -- 

12 	A. 	A Little bit more than two years ago. 

13 	Q. 	Doctor, I would like to go through this visit, doctor. 

14 	Did you take a history? 

15 

36 

17 

A. 	Of course. 

Q. 	Can you walk the ladies and gentlemen of thejury 

through the history? 

1#3 A. 	Yes, 	Ms. 	Iovino informed me that She was at the time 

19 35 year 	of age. 	She was involved in a motor vehicle accident, 

20 she was 4 pedestrian, on October 3, 	2011. 	she stated that she 

21 sustained blunt direct trauma to the region Of her left 

22 shoulder at the time of the aceident. 	She Was seen at Coney 

23 Island Hospital. 	She was there specifically for persistent 

24 pain in her left shoulder. 	She also had same neck pain 

25 radiating down her left arm with numbness_ 
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The pain in the left shoulder gavo her difficulty' 

doi.ng normal activities of daily living. such as liftJng, 

eaching behind you to get dressed, carrying things, normal 

activities, going to a kitchen cabinet. She couldn't. do that 

without pain. She als0 had pain at night, meaning it was hard 

to sleep • on that sides Critically, she had no prior history of 

any difficulty with that loft shoulder before. That's a very 

important. point. 

MR. NEWMANt Objection. May the doctor answer 

	

it 	the question, and not editorial.i7.e. and make speeches? 

THE COURT: That's fair. Sure. 

	

2 	 Just answer the gOestion, doctor. 

THE, WITt.V.SS: Okay. So as I menLioned she had no 

	

14 	prior history of difficulty wiLh her shoulder before and 

	

15 	she was getting physical therapy at that Lime to her left 

	

16 	shoulder. 

	

)7 	Q. 	Doctor, you mentioned that there is no prior history 

	

18 	or problems with tlia left shoulder. What does that tell you, 

19 doctor? 

	

20 	A, 	That she doesn't have a prior reason to be having 

ongoincl pain in the shoulder from some other problem, whether 

	

22 	it was a. disease problem like arthritis or from some other 

	

23 	injury that could have affected h..r 
left shoulder. There was 

	

2,4 	no history of any difficulty with that left shoulder before, no 

	

25 	matter what else she had gone- through. 
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Q. 	At this point, doctor, did you have an MR7 report? 

A, 	Yes, I did, 

Q. 	What was your understanding of the MRI? 

A. 	The MRI report that was available showed that the 

patient had what's called subacromial or subdeltoid bursitis 

which in English basically means that she had an inflamed 

shoulder, and that it, was irritated, and it can cause pain. 

0. 	Doctor, just talking real 
quick subjective versus 

objective. What is subjective and what is Objective 

A. 	Subjeetive would be that I feel like it's raining 

outside. Objective would believe 1 am outside and it's raining 

on me:, That's objective. So the difference is one thing i$ 

evident and one thing is thought. 

0. 	And an MRI, is that subjective or objective? 

A. 	It tends to be objective. The only subjective part is 

the radiologist reading it. But the machine that produces the 

fiJrns, that's totally objective, 

0, 	Continue reading, doctor, past medical history. Did 

you take a past medical history? 

A, 	Yes. She had no history of any, major medical issue 

sUch as diabetes., hypertension, heart, lung, Kidney disease, 

No problems. 

Q. 	W-d you tak a past surgical history? 

A. 	Yes. 

What was your finding for a past Surgical history, 
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I doctor? 

A- 	Three years before the date of her coming to see me or 

	

3 	some time in 2006, she had Undergone a surgery for the right 

	

4 	shoulder. She had an arthroscopic procedure to her opposite 

right shoulder. 

	

6 	Q. 	Does that affect in any way your findings, doctor? 

MR. NEWMAN: Objection- 

	

8 
	 THE COURT: W6 don't have findings here. 

	

9 	 MR. HERBERT: Okay, We will get to it. 

	

10 	Q. 	Were there any medications at this point, doctor? 

	

IT 	A. 	She was taking anti-inflammatory medications like 

	

12 	Ibuprofen better known as Motrin things like that. 

	

13 	Q. 	Continue reading 	nything: significant for the family 

	

14 	and social history? 

	

15 	A. 	No, I think the point is to get to the physical exam 

	

16 	which is what you really want to know. 

	

17 	Q. 	Doctor, can you explain to the ladies and gentlemen of 

	

18 	the jury what is range of motion? 

	

19 	A. 	Range of motion is the following. Every joint in our 

	

20 	body has a certain ability to move. It's a joint. It can 

	

21 	move. Some joints move less, some joints move more. The 

22 

	

23 	many different directions. It 

	

24 	side. For instance you can't move your knee to the side. You 

	

'45 	can only bend it and straighten it (nit, bend it and straighten 

shoulder is considered a universal joint because it can move in 

can move up. It can, move to the 
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it: out. A shoulder you can bring • up, you can bring to the 

side, you can rotate, you can cross your body) you can reach 

behind you, uniVersal. It has amazing ability to move. 

Q. 	,On this visit in November of 2011 With Jessica iovino, 

did you take range of motion tests, doctor? 

Yes, I did., 

7' 	Q. 	What were your findings? 

A. 	The findings were very notable. The normal forward 

flexion, Meaning bringing your arm in front of you and going 

10 	straight up in the air, is 180 degrees. This would be 90, 

11 	straight out. in front of us. 180 would be pointing straight u 

12 	to the ceiJing. That 'would be a normal range of motion, in this 

13 	direction (indic ting). Her range of motion on that, date was 

14 	90 degrees which is 50 percent of the motion_ 

15 	 The next motion is abduction.  which Is lifting your_ an 

16 	to the side. She bad a similar loss of motion. Mean5ng the 

	

37 	normal range is 180 decrees, all the way up (indicating). Her 

	

18 	range was only 90. She could internally.  rotate 40 degrees. 

	

19 	The normal internal rotation is 80, ladies, in particular, if 

	

20 	you reach behind: you in the back, normally you can bring your.  

	

21 	arm across. That's -80i  90 degrees. When a person can rotate 

	

22 	only a certain amount that's less, and Jess, and less, it's 

	

23 	very, very difficult to function your aCtivities when you can 

	

2.4 	rotate. She. had .a Toss of 50 percent of her internal range of 

25 	motion as well. 
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External. 1:otation, 30 degrees 	Normal is, 

approximately, 50 degrees. So she had a. little bit less- loss 

but still significant because 20 degree loss out of 50 is 

similar to a 90 degree loss out of 160. So she had similar 

Josses . She. had severe pain with attempted rotational 

movements at, 90 degrees of abduction. Abduction is movement to 

he side (indicating). Pain with rotation means that she has 

difficulty doing her activities, If she had to notate her arms 

for anything, she had.. pain. 

10 	 Two important orthopedic testing signs were positive. 

11 	She had a positive Neer's, test and a. positive O'Brien's Lest. 

12, 	A Neer's test is a. test for impingement and O'Brien's test is a 

13 	test that gives us an idea whether or not the patient has 

14 	what's called a. labral tear in the shoulder. These are all 

15 	very -- of course, they are not 100 percent accurate, but they 

16 	give a high degree of expectancy to be true. So impingement 

17 	was positive and labral tearing was positive. 

18 	 Did you have an. assessment or plan at this paint, 

19 

20 	A. 	Yes. 

What was, your assessment or plan at this point, 

22 doctor? 

23 	A. 	At that point she was five weeks into her injury with 

24 	a very irritated. shoulder, At the very least she had a lot of 

25 	irritation in that shoulder. What impingement actually means 
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Is that there IS- pressure on the rotator .cuff muscle. The 

rotator cuff muscle normally-  clevate,,  your arm, rotates. 

Whether you are an athlete or just reaching into the kitchen 

cabinet, you have to rotate your arm_ So impingement is when 

the muscle that does that which is the. rotator cuff, it lives 

within a certain space within the. shoulder. When thai. space 

becomes compromised for whatever reason, that rotator cuff is 

t going to be a happy person, a happy muscle. And, 

therefore, a. person can have difficulty functioning when the 

10 	rotator cuff comes under pressure. And that pressure is known 

11 	as impingement. 

12 	 This patient clearly had an impingement and I was 

13 	already concerned about a labral tearing because of the 

11 	positive O'Brien's test, At that point I recommended a 

15 	cortisone injection into the patient'e shoulder in order to 

16 	calM down that irritation, calm down the inflammation and maybe 

1.7 	get he to function a little bit better. The patient did net 

18 	want the injection 	She had a cortisone injection a number of 

19 	years ago for her right shoulder and she. had such severe pain 

20 	from that injection. She remembered it. She doesn't want to 

21 	ever consider that injection again. T couldn't talk her out of 

2' 	it, but that was it. So I told her to "continue your therapy 

23 	and let's hope you get better with conservative treatment." 

24 	G. 	Thank you. Anything else with that visit, doctor? 

25, 	A- 	No. 
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Q. 	When was the next time you saw Ms. Jessica Tovino? 

A. 	T saw her November 28th. So the first visit was 

November 14. She came back two weeks later. She was 

Continuing to work with conservative-  treatment with physical 

therapy and she continued to have significant pain in that same 

left shoulder. Her examthation did not significantly change. 

She still had limited flexion forward, limited abduction, 

limited rotation and painful rotation. She still had the 

positive orthopedic testing Neer 's sign. 

	

10 	 At that point she was approaching two months into her 

	

1 	injury. Once again, I tried to offer her cortisone injection, 

	

12 	but she was fairly steadfast in her feeliug that she does not 

	

13 	want to go through that again and 30 she continued to stay on 

	

14 	conservative treatment. And 1 said to her, "Look, if this pain 

	

15 	keeps up and you have lost this much motion, you have lost this 

	

16 	much function, you may need what's called an arthrosoopic 

	

17 	procedure." Remember the procedure T told. you. 30 years ago was 

	

la 	a brand new field and today is very can common? She may need 

	

9 	that procedure done on her shoulder to relieve the pressure 

	

20 	within her shoulder for the impingement. and Y had in my mind 

	

21 	additionally that she may have had a labral tear As well based 

	

22 	on my earlier exam. I said, "but for the meantime just. 

	

23 	continue your therapy," 

	

24 	Q, 	So, dector, this November 28, 2011 exam, yo0 took 

	

25 	range of moLion tests, correct? 
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A. 	Yes. 

Q, 	And your findings were decreased range of motion; is 

that correct? 

A, 	Markedly. Fifty percent loss. 

5 	0- 	When was the next time you saw Ma, lovino, doctor? 

A. 	About a month. later, 

Q. 	And when was that? 

A. 	December 22, 2011. She continued to complain of 

persistent pain despite continued efforts Of conservative 

treatment. Her examination again showed Similar loss of motion 

11 	with forward flexion and abduction to 90 degrees, There were 

12 	some , chang0.8  with rotational movements but very modest and very 

13 	mInor. She ontinued to have marked pain with attempt at 

14 	rotation which waS a very important finding and she continued 

15 	to have 'a positive' Neer's sign, At that point, approaching 

16 	three months into her injury with persistent and significant. 

17 	pain in the shoulder, left shoulder, despite efforts of 

18 	continued conservative treatment with positive findings on 

19 	examination and on. the MRI report, I _recommended at this point 

20 	an arthroscopic approach When a patient is suffering already 

21 	fbr three month, that's enough. Loss of MOtion can get tore 

22 	and more difficult to overturn and overcome the longer you Wait  

to try t .intervene with a problem of this magnitude

Q. 	What happened next? 

25 	A. 	She agreed to undergo the surgery. Right before the 
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new year on December 28, 2011, the patient underwent 

arthroscopic surgery to her left: shoulder, 

Q. 	At this point should we walk through -- do you want to 

use any blowups to show the shoulder to help you with the 

procedure? 

A. 	with your permission. 

7 
	 MR. HERBERT: Your Honor, is it okay to use the 

demonstrative evidence? 

THE COURT: Of course. 

MR. HERBERT: Thank you, YoUr Honor. May 

11 	4PPrOach? 

12 	 THE COURT: Do you want to put it on the board or 

13 	do you want to put it on the. easel? 

14 	Q. 	DO you feel comfortable using the board behind you?
.  

15 	A. 	Are you talking about the big.  pictures? It will be,  

16 	better to put it On that thing right there so they can see 

i7 that. 

18 	 THE COURT We will se.t op the easel. We will 

put it somewhere there so all the lixy can see. 

20 
	

Mr. Newman, when we put it up, if you want to, 

you can move so you can see what th doctor is talking 

about. 

23 
	

MR. NEWMAN. : Thank you, Judge. 

THE COURV. Those two exhibits are actually 

already admiL:ted by S ipuaation of7 counsel. So 1r,:it(s 

10 

21 

22 

24 

25 
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spread the tripod. And, counsel, you will offer the 

officer the document you want to USG and we will put it up. 

MR. HERBERT: Okay, Can the doctor approach.? 

THE COURT: Put it up first and then the doctor 

111 approach. 

MR. HERBERT: Can we do this one. firsL? 

THE COURT: Now-  you can step down. You can move 

anywhere that helps you see, counsel. 

THE WITNESS Thank you. 

(At this time, the witness stepped. off the 

witness stand and. approached the exhibit) 

MR, HERBERT: The witness is looking at what's 

been marked as Plaintiff's Exhibit 5. Thank you. 

Q. 	You Can proceed. 

A. 	This is actually a more advanced picture than. the 

other picture. The ether picture simply shows bones, No 

muscles, ju.A. bones, So It's very easy to see the anatomy of 

the bones. However, this picture fills in. If you take 

muscles and put It in, now you see what it really looks like. 

This is a real houlder. So in this view we are kind of 

LQ0king.  frolli .6 perch, looking down at the patient, way up high 

looking down here. at the patient's head. We are looking at his 

shoulder. Further-  down comes the belly 	Here's the shoulder 

(indicating). We will come back to that. 

This is a. front. view. You are looking-  at my right 
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shoulder. That's that this view is. You can see this is the 

bone of the humerus going down to the elbow, This is the top 

of the shoulder what you can't see because it's covered by a 

muscle and tendon, okay. The joint is going to ho right in 

here. This is a very critical space, the space between the top 

of this muscle -- you see this is a very big, large muscle 

here, 'a big red muscle? The big-  red muscle turns into a white 

tendon because muscles don't attach into bones. Tendons do. 

So When a muscle turns into a tendon, a tendon then attaches 

into the bone. 

The rotator cuff is a. massive muscle, It i5 composed 

12 	of three different muscles that all mell together. Here you 

Can. see there is some separation between Muscles, but they all 

14, 	merge together. You can't see the separation. here. They 

15 	become a cuff. It's called a rotator.  cuff, What the rotator 

16 	cuff does is it allows you if you want to throw a baseball or 

17 	if you want to go to the kitchen cabinet, you have to take your 

you have to lift it, scmet:imes you have to rotate it to 

throw, All that comes from the power of the rotator cuff. You 

20 	see on TV all the time athletes being injured. You don't have 

21 	to be an athlete to have a problem with the rotator cuff, 

22 	 That rotator cuff lives-  in a certain space. It lives 

23 	in a certain space. And an long as that. space is not 

24 	compromised, whether it's by disease or by trauma, things.  

25 	should work well. But once things start becoming compromised, 
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the function of that rotator cuff to lift and rotate becomes 

affected. Take a. Look at how small Lho space is. This is 

called the acromion bone. If you take your own, let's say, 

efL arm and you put it on top of your right shoulder like you 

are saying hello to someone, "haw are you doing, Bob", right, 

you are not hitting the shoulder, you are hitting the acromion 

bone protecting Lho shoulder underneath. 

This is the acromion bone. Right underneath the 

acromion bone is the rotator cuff muscle. And the rotator cuff 

10 	is the roof of the shoulder, meaning underneath the rotator 

11 	cuff is the shoulder-  itself. If we were inside the shoulder 

ith a microscope and we looked, up, we would see the bottom ot 

13 	this rotator cuff. It functions Like the roof. It separates 

14 	the compartment of the shou3der from this subacromial space. 

15 	So when you saw in the MKI the patient had subacrorulal 

16 	buruitis, that's what this is, inflammation in this area right. 

17 	here affecting this rotator cuff. Anything that compromises 

	

15 	that space, inflammation anythilg there, will make it hard for 

	

19 	the patient to function. So this is a key point, 

	

20 	 So if yOu are lookjng down from the top, here is 

	

21 	another view. -ere is the acromion. Here is, by the way, the 

	

22. 	clavicle. That comes from the chest. The clavicle meets with 

	

23 	the acromion underneath it, just this much_ This is the 

24 	rotator cuff, And just imagine, if we are lifting our arm, 

25 	this rotator cuff lifts and bangs into the undersurface of this 
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acromion bone. It's that rubbing and. that banging when there 

is Inflammation in there that leads to problems. 

There is only one other Lhing on the other photo. 

MR. HERBERT: Your Honor, may I switch the. 

exhltsits, Your Honor? 

THE COURT: Yes. 

Putting up what's been marked.. now as Plaintiff's 

Exhibit Number 6- 

A. 	This ,ls4  by the way, a view it you take away all the 

muscles, okay, this i the shoulder.  joint. Here is the bone 

going-  down to the elbow.. NOW, you see the humeral head which 

Was covered by the rotator cuff. Now, you see there is nothing 

in t.hts space between the undersurface of this acromion bone 

and the top of the shoulder. It was filled with the rotator 

cuff before and a little bit of space. Much. bigger space when 

there is no rotator cuff in. there. So this is the space that. 

we all are living in in terms of our function of the rotator 

cuff. When it's compromised, we have pxoblems. 

There is one other thing I want to show you 

mg, HERBERT; Your Honor, there was one more 

exhibit that wasn't marked. I showed it to counsel this 

morning. I believe there was no objection to this. I 

would also like to get this one marked for the doctor. 

THE COURT: I will mark it. Show it to your 

adversary and we will s-ee what we are doing next. So let's 
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mark it for identification, 

MR. NEWMAN.: Well, subject to redaction I have no 

objection, ,Tudge. 

1.1.tg COURT: May I have both counsel up here and 

please bring the exhibit. 

(Cif-the-record discussion held at the bench) 

THE, COURT: The item is admitted for 

demonstrative evidence with no objection., 

Q. 	New you can talk about it, doctor:. Can. you take a 

ItO 	look at this? 

111 
	

A. 	I Just waited to show you on thing on this picture. 

12. 	Joints re hot just muscle- and bones. There's all types of 

13 	soft tissues imSide like ligaments and other structures which. 

14 	WO did not get into. But the shoulder is supposed to be a ball 

15 	and socket joint just like the hip, Except in the hip it's 

16 	like a true socket. The hip is sitting inside a socket. If 

17 	you looked at the hip, you can't see it. Its surrounded by a 

	

1$ 	socket. To dislocate a. hip is very hard. The shoulder bali 

	

19 	and socket looks like this, not quite a socket, 

	

?Q 	 So the shoulder can commonly dislocate. What prevents 

	

2,1 	it from disiOCating is not so much the bony restriction but 

	

2.2 	there is soft tiasue that rims 360 degrees arOuid the socket 

	

23 	called the labrum 	1 mentioned the 01 Brien's test before. It 

	

24 	was positive On her which was for a labral tears When that 

	

25 	labrum tears, it's the structure that helps prevent the 
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shoulder from dislocating. It can cause pain. It can. 

potentially cause instability, I just wanted to show all of 

you that here is the shoulder joint, Here is the ball. The 

socket is over here 	This grayish, blackish area is called the 

labrum. This white line in the middle of this structure is 

representing a tear. The point I am just trying to make is 

that there is a structure called the labrum. It has a. specific 

purpose. Like any other soft tissue, it can tear in certain 

circumstances- and it can cause pain- Ws not only impingement 

10 	with muscles and bones, it's also soft tissue like tha labrum 

11. 	that can cause pain_ 

12 	Q. 	Can you walk it to the side to show the jury. 

13 	A. 	The lab 	is this structure here, this grayish black  

14 	structure. Just imagine it going 360 degrees around the 

1' 	•socket. It helps prevent the shoulder froM dislocating. When 

1.6 	it tears, it can cause pain. This is the shoulder joint. The 

17 	socket is on this side and this blackish gray structure is 360 

18, 	degrees around the socket trying to prevent the,. shoulder. 

1.9 	Because of lack of bony restriction, it tries to make it harder 

20 	for the shoulder to come out. That 	all, 

21 	 (At this time, the witness resumed the witness 

22 	stand) 

23 	Q. 	Thank you, doctor. - I believe we were at the 

24 	operation, doctor. 

25 	A. 	Yes, 
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0- 	Whon did the operation take place.? 

A. 	dust before New Year's, December 28, 2011, 

Q. 	Where did the operation take place, doctor? 

A. 	At Franklin Hospital in Valley Stream. 

Q. 	And you were the doctor that performed surgery? 

	

6 

	

A. 	Yes'.. 

7 Q. . Can you walk the ladies and gentlemen of the jury 

through the surgery? 

A. 	Yes. Basically, the patient went to what's called a 

	

10 	same day procedUre, an ambulatory procedure. You. don't sLay 

	

11 	overnight. You come in. You have the procedure done. You go 

	

12 	home. Generally speaking, you have. to dp some blood work ahead 

	

13 	9f time just to make sure everything is okay
. , pretesting. And 

then comes the date of surgery itself. she undergoes a 

	

15 	partictaar type of.  anesthesia. There are many different 

	

16 	anesthesias. This is called the inter-scalene block where,  a 

	

17 	needle is placed in the region of the neck to block the pain 

	

18 	fibers coming froM the spinal. cord going into the shoulder- So 

	

19 	that when you do 1:hat the patient can still breathe on their 

	

20 	own without a machine breathing for them because you are not 

	

21 	blocking under a general anesthesia the respiration. You, are 

	

22 	blocking the shoulder. So a person can. come through it a 

	

23 	little 1.)it, easier. 

	

.24 	 A person, in this case Ms, lovinoi she underwent the 

	

25 	iht6rscalene block for the shoulder. And then, 1 put a camera 
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inside her shoulder in the shape of a pen. In order to do 

that, I have to make an incision in the skin. 1 then place a 

camera that looks like a pen. The camera goes directly inside 

the shoulder. I have pictures of that i take on every 

procedure. And the image, I don't have to put my eye on the 

back of the camera_ We beam the image to a high definition 

television. screen. So even though the surgery is going on this 

way, I am looking that way. That's why it's hard to transfer. 

Trt'a little bit out of kilter. 

So when I put the camera inside, I found: that, in 

deed, she did have a labral tear. I have pictures of it. She 

had a labral tear and she had the impingement on the rotator 

cuff filled with red angry tissue, inflammatory tissue, which 

is-  like a layer of acid sitting on top of the rotator cuff and 

also the tendon. unit., The purpose of the procedure was, one, 

to find oUt what's going on in the shoulder. I confirmed that 

she had a labral tear and that she had the impingement. And 

only do I confirm that point, but I also fix the problem at 

the sametime. So I went in. I used special shaving devices. 

I removed and excised all that inflammatory and angry tissue 

within her shoulder and.. 	also removed the labral tearing from 

her shoulder. Once that was done I sew up the different holes 

in the shoulder, There were three different portals I call 

them to get into the shoulder, Then the patient goes to 

recovery room, recovers in recovery room and eventually goes 
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AO 

0. 	Doctor, when.. yo-u are doing the procedure, are you 

actually 'literally able to see into the shoulder of Ms. Iovino? 

A. 	Correct. You can see directly -- well, your eyes 

doWt go through the skin, but the camera does, So that you 

are looking at the patient. The skin is still overlying. It's 

not like the old days where you make a large incision and 

separate- and. retract muscle to look inside. Now we do it with 

a Camera through a. smaller incision, but we actually see 

	

.0 	better. The camera can see all. around the shoulder. And then 

	

11 	while we are seeing the problem, we also find ways to get into 

	

12 	the shoulder' with various instruments and then we fix the 

la problem. I have those pictures too, 

	

14 	Q. 	We will get to that. When you stated you removed 

	

15 	pieces of Ms. Iovino, are you literally taking pieces of her 

	

16 	shoulder out of her body? 

	

17 	A. 	of course. I removed the tear and I' removed all that 

	

18- 	inflammatory red hemorrhagic tissue from Within her shoulder 

	

19 	joint which is only serving to give her, pain. 

	

20 	Q. 	Do you have pictures or photographs of this procedure, 

2doctor? 

	

22 	A. 	Yes. And, by the Way, not only do you, remove all that 

	

23 	tissue, but I also had to remove bone tissue because hone was 

	

24 	also putting-  pressure on the rotator cuff as a result of this 

25 injury. 
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Q. 	Can we take a look at the photographs?.  

A. 	Of course. 

MIL HERBERT: Your Honor, are these to be marked 

individually.  or 

THE COURT: How many photos do yo.u have there or 

hoW, many sheets.? 

COURT OFFICER; Five. 

THE COURT; Show thdm to Mr. Newman'. 

MR. NEWMAN: It's okay, aladgo. I know what they 

are. 

THE COURT: Do you want them marked collectively? 

MR. HERBERT: Whever is good with the Court. 

THE COURT; What ate we up to now? We will make 

it O-A - rough E. 

KR. 	WMAN: May we 	oh? 

THE COURT: Yes, 

(Off-the-recard discussion held at the bench) 

THE COURT: Make it 4-A through E. Sirce those 

photograph are aLready part of the tile that is admitted 

as Exhibit 4, i will make it 4-A through E and that your 

signal that Ws taken out of 4. By knowing that i 

its just part of it. 4-4 through t. 

MR, HERBERT; Thank you, Your Honor, 

(Reeived and marked Plaintiff's EXhibits 4-A 

through 4-E in evidence) 
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COURT OFFICER Do you want them published 

individually to the jury? 

THE COURT: What do you want to do? 

MR. 	HERBERT 1 Can he explain what the pictures 

represent? 

THE 'COURT: Of course,. 

MR. HERBERT: Thank you, You/ Honor. 

THE COURT: Do you want to approach to do that? 

THE WITNESS: Yes. It's too small, 

10 	 THE COURT:' You can stand before the jury. Mold 

11 	it up. 

12 	 Mr. Newman, you can change where you are to see 

13 	what he is doing. 

14 	 (71t this time, the witness stepped oif the 

1$ 	witness stand and approached with the exhibit) 

IG A. 	I will try to walk it this way but these are the 

17 	actual ihtraoperative photos of the patient's shoulder. This 

18 	is where there is only truth. It is not jilst MRI -readings. 

19 	 MR. NEWMAN: Objection. 

20 	 THE COURT: Sustained. 

21 	A 	This is where I can see exactly what's going on. NQ 

2.: 	one can interfere with my intexpetation of what's the truth. 

23, 	 MR, NEWMAN't Objection, 

24 	 THE COURT: Can you just give us facts and keep 

25 	out the editorials, doctor? 
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THE WITNESS: Yes. 

2 	 THE COURT: Thank you. 

  

THE WITNESS: This is: a ball and socket joint, 

    

    

ball and.  socket joint, ball and socket of the patients 

left shoulder. The camera is coming in from the back. So 

6 	yot are seeing the ball to the left, the socket to the 

right, okay. This is a picture of the rotator cuff muscle, 

white, attaching directly into the bone. Remember I said 

it's theroof? Looking inside the shoulder looking up you 

10 
	

see the rotator cuff muscle. Here she had a tear. 

I will show you a picture now of the socket. 

This is the socket right here, part of the socket, okay. 

And here is the labral tissue. That is supposed to be 

attached firmly to the socket— You see it's sticking up in 

1,5 	the air from here to here? You see this piece from hare to 

16, 	here? Do you see this? That's not sapposed to be sticking 

17 	out. Thatts Supposed to be flat right on the socket. This 

18 	is the labrum sticking straight op in the air. It's 

19 	supposed to be firmly adherent to the socket. 

2t) 	 fore is a picture where the iabrum is adherent to 

21 , 	the socket. Here is the socket. Here is the lahrum, It 

22 	Is not up in the air. Do you see that? Here is the 

23 	labxum. Here is the socket. You see it is not sticking up 

24 	into the air? It is right there. As opposed to this. 

25HH 	This patient had a labral tear which is painful. 

14 

11, 

12 

1:1 
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In addition, I am going to show you impingement, 

pictures of impingement. This is a. picture of the rotntor 

cuff. Do you see is covered with this red tissue, okay? 

There is not sUpposed to be any red in the shoulder. Its 

all supposed to look like this. Do you, see this red from 

here to here? It fills the space. This red is a 

hemorrhagic bursitis. It is sitting right on the rotator 

cuff. It's very irritating. It causes a lot of pain. 

This is a picture of the bone. First otf, here 

10 	is more inflammatory tissue. All this tissue here, it's 

11 	supposed to be clear color. All of it, thick. ad  

12 	inflammatory angry tissue, T was in there with a special 

13 	shaving. device just cleaning everything out so that lo the 

14 	end Ws a wide open space. I am here removing some bone, 

15. 	See the. red, yellow bone area up here. That bone is 

16 	putting pressure on that rotator cuff Wheri the person lifts 

17 	their arm and the purpose of this was to show that she had 

1 	red hot inflammatory tissue inside the shoulder. She 

19• 	needed to have that all cleaned out and. she had the labral 

20 

21 	 (At this time, the witness resumed the witness 

22 	stand) 

23 	Q. 	Thank you, doctor. Anything else, doctor, With the 

24 surgery? 

25 	A. 	NO. 

tearing -which needed to be cleaned out as Well. 
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Q. 	When did you next come to see Ms. Jessica. Iovino, 

doctor? 

A, 	She returned on January 9, 2012. She came for her 

first postoperative visit. At that time I removed the 

stitches. There was no sign of infection and I told her she 

needed to begin posteperative physical therapy. The patient 

e back again on March. 1.9, 2012, Again, there was no sign of 

infection. She was,  working with therapy. She still complained 

of pain on a daily basis, but she said the pain was improved 

10 	from where it was before the surgery. Her range of motion was 

11 	already beginning to improve- Remembelz she was only able 	do 

12 	90 degrees in both directions. Now she was up to in the 

3 	neighborhood of 150 degrees in this direction and 130 degrees 

14 	to the Side or abduction. 

is 	 I knew that that could fluctuate, but she was on the 

16 	road to a better shoulder than she had before the surgery. I 

17 	told her to continue her therapy. She returned again on 

18 	September 24, 2012. Her range of motion was similar. Flexion 

19 	to 150. Abduction to 140- And, again, she remained with some 

20 	pain, but she was improved- June 24th, she came back again 

21 	just for a. routine follow-up. She said that she did have 

22 	persistent pain that was interMittent. She had some difficulty 

23 	with stressful activities such as when lifting or carrying 

24 	things Wore involved. But her motion had stayed fairly steady 

25 	at about 110 degrees of motion between forward flexion and 
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abduction. She returned again for follow-up -- 

Q. 	Doctor, just a. real quick comment. So on these visits 

you are talking about range of motion_ Those are decreased 

range of motions? 

A. 	Yes, normal. is 180 degrees in each direction. She was 

now up to about 140ish. August 26th she came back. Similar 

situation-, persistent pain but still better than it was before. 

Range of motion again in that 140 degree. range, She came back 

November 4 1  2013, At that time she saw my associate. She was 

	

10 	complaining that she had some increasing pain which she leeLt 

	

11. 	was related more to the recent cold weather than started and 

	

12 	her motion had significantly decreased back down to 90 degrees 

	

13 	but that was temporary. When I saw her again., I believe it was 

	

14 	December 9th. I don't know where that one is. Ner motion had 

	

15 	come back to that 140 degree range. I can't find that note 

	

26 	now. I saw her again and she was improving from that time that. 

	

17 	she was starting to decline a little bit. 

	

8 	Q. 	In your, notes looking at, for instance, NQvernber 4th 

	

9 	or the December visit, can you talk about home physical 

20 therapy, doctor? 

	

21 	A. 	Yes. Basically, she was no longer getting formal 

	

22 	physical therapy at a rehabilitation facility. So 1 had 

	

23 	demonstrated to her exercises that she could do on her own 

	

24 	Which was basically stretching exercises to try to improve her 

	

25 	motion. 140 degrees. is• better than 90 what she bad before, but 
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it 	still not 160 degrees, So I was demonstrating some 

exercises for her to do at home which she could creep up a wall 

3 	with her fingers and slowly stretch her arm out. I 

demonstrated to her what position she should be in when she 

does that. Also, some strengthening exercises to lift various 

things with forward flexion and abduction to not only help with 

her motion but to try to help her with her strength; 

	

Q- 	These dates that we just talked about, December and 

vember, so it's cleat for the ladies and gentlemen of the 

50 	jury, these are.  December of 2013 Visit and November of 2013 

11 	visit? 

12 	A, 	Yes, just about a month ago. 

13i 	Q. 	How would you: rate Ms. Iovino as a t Naer, seeing her 

the last two, two and a bale years? 

MR. MAN: Objection. 

THE COURT: Lel_ me hear the question again 

17 	please? 

16 	 (The requested portion was read by the court 

reporter) 

20 	 THE COURT: Sustained a to form, 

2 
	

0, 	Doctor, going back to your first Visit in November Of 

22 	2011, you talked about a right shoulder prior scope; is that 

23 correct? 

24 	A. 	Yes, 

25 	Q. 	Would this right shoulder prior, approximately, 2008 
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scope affect any of your diagnosis for the left.shoulderl 

MR, NEWMAN; Objection. 

THE COURT NO. You may answer that. 

A, 	No, it would not. 

Q. 	Why is that, doctor? 

A. 	very Clear why. The patient never complained about 

her left shoulder at the time of her problems in 2008 or after 

her problems in 2008. 

MR. NEWMAN: Objection. Move to strike. There 

10 	is no foundation. 

11 	 THE COURT: Sustained. 

12 	Q. 	What was your understanding at the time when you 

started treating her, doctor? 

14 	 M. NEWMAN: Objection. 

15 	 THE COURT: Sustained as to form. 

15 	Q. 	What was your diagnosis in November of 2011, when you 

17 	saw her, doctor? 

18 	 My diagnosis waS that she had a new problem with her 

19 	left shoulder. The problem was an impingement problem and my 

20 	belief was on exam she might also had a labral tear as well 

21 	wilich turned out to be true. That was the diagnosis for her 

22 	left shoulder. NO prior difficulties with the left shoulder. 

23 	Q. 	Doctor, I want you to assume -- strike that. 

.2/1 	 Part of your file, did you have the hospital records 

25 	with you, doctor? 
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A. 	Yes. 

Q. 	Were those hospital records consistent with your 

reatment? 

Absolutely. 

Doctor, do you have an opinion Within a reasonable 

degree_ of medical certainty as to the cause of Ms. Jessica 

Tovino's itpingement syndrome in the left shoulder, her 

Ucular labral tearing and the labium tear, doctor? 

MR, NEWMANt Objection. 

THE COURT Overruled_ You may answer. 

A. 	7 do have at opinion on that. 

Q. 	What is your opinion, doctor? 

A. 	My opinion is that the injuries that I had diagnosed 

and found at surgery and confirmed were directly related to the 

Motor vehicle accident of October 3, 2013- 

Q-, 	How do you know that, doctor? 

A. 	Very simple. The patient did not have any complaints 

of her left shoulder prior to her coming to see me or prior to 

her ;accident on October 3, 2011. Only after that particular 

traUma to her shoulder did she first begin to complain of 

problems with her left shoulder, only after that. And after 

that accident she had problems. She was treated for that. She 

had MRI testing, I followed her along for months and clearly 

there is a cause and effect between a trauma she sustainod -- 

MR- NEWMAN 	Objection, 
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THE COURT: Overruled. 

A, 	There is a cause and effect between the trauma she 

sustained at the time of the accident and the problems that I 

found in her left shoulder. There was nothing before, only at 

he time of the accident. And they are clearly related. 

Q. 	Doctor, do you have an opinion within a reasonable 

degree of medical certainty as to whether Ms. Jessica I V ho 

had suffered a disability as a result of this acoiden , more 

specifically, her it shoulder? 

MR. NEWMAN: Objection. 

THE COURT: Overruled. You may answer. 

A. 	Yes, I do have an opinion on that. 

Q. 	what A,,s your opinion, doctor? 

A. 	She clearly hac' sustained an injury, a permanent 

injury, to her left shoulder. She has persistent loss of 

motion- She has persistent pain, although improved from where 

it was. But she still has it. 

Q. 	Doctor, do you have an opinion .Within a reasonable 

degree of medical certainty as to whether Ms. Jessica Iovino 

has suffered a permanent consequential use of limitation of her 

left shoulder? 

MR. NEWMAN: Objection. 

THE COURT: Overruled,  You may answer. 

A. 	Yes, I do have an opinion. 

Q. 	What' is your opinion, doctor? 
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A.j. believe she has sustained a permanent injury and a 

consequential loss of use. 

Q 
	Doctor, do you have an opinion 'within a reasonable 

degree of medical certainty as to whether Ms. Jessica Tovino 

has suffered a significant limitation of the use of her left 

Shoulder? 

MR. NEWMAN: Objection, 

	

8 	 THE COURT:.  You may answer, 

A. 	I do have an opinion. 

	

10 	Q. 	What is your opinion, doctor? 

	

11 	A. 	She clearly has suffered such a loss. 

	

12 	Q. 	What is your opinion based on, doctor? 

	

13 	A. 	L have been following her for quite some time, over a 

	

14 	lengthy period of time in her shoulder. She did make progress 

	

15 	and she knows it. She made progress and she is happy with that 

	

16 	pro 	s, but it's nowhere near a normal -- 

	

17 	 MR. NEWMAN: Objection. 

	

18 	 THE COURT: Overruled, You may answer- 

	

19 	A. 	It nowhere near a normal shoulder. 

	

20 	Q. 	Doctor, do you have ar 
opinion within a reasonable 

	

21 	degree of medical certainty as to whether Ms. Jessica Levine 

	

22 	will need future treatment with regard to her left shoulder? 

	

23 	A. 	'Yes_ 

	

24 	Q. 	What is your opinion, doctor? 

	

25 	A 	I de believe that she needs to have more continued 
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ehabilitation, physical therapy to try to gain range of motion 

and try to help her With her remaining pain and function. 

MR. HERBERT: No further questions, Your Honor. 

THE COURT: All right. You may cross-examine. 

MR. NEVMAN: Thank you, Judge. 

CROSS EXAMINATION 

BY MR, NEWMAN: 

Q. 	Good afternoon, doctor. 

A. 	Good afternoon, sir. 

Q. 	We have never net before, corret0 

A* 	No., sir. 

Q. 	But you have testified many times in this courthouse 

and courtho OS in other counties in New.  York, torrect? 

  

14 	A 	What is "many times"? 

15 	Q. 	You 'Said you testified last year about eight times. 

16 	A. 	'Yes, sir, 

17 	Q. 	In 2011, how many times. did you testify? 

1 	A. 	I would say aboUt the same number. 

19 	Q. 	In 2040? 

20 	A. 	
I mentioned its about the same humber the last number 

21 	of years. 

22 	Q. 	
Sb in the last thtee years you have testified at least 

23 	30 times? 

24 	A. 	No. I said seven or eight times per year. 

2.5 	Q, 	Twenty-five 'Limes? 
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THE COURT: He hadnft finished his answer. 

MR. NEWMAN: I'm sorry, Judge. 

THE COURT: Please complete your answer, doctor. 

THE WITNESS:: I do n1 have a formal record, but 

would Suggest it's probably in the low 20's over three 

years. 

Q. 
	So can we say that's many times? 

MR. HERBERT: Objection, I'm Sorry. 

THE COURT: You may answer. 

10 	A. 	1 don't think that's many times if 1 am called 
to 

11, 	testify by people for their own problem. 

12 	Q. 	But you understand the rules, If I •ask You a question 

13 	thar. delis for a yes or :o answer -- 

14 	 I am give you one. 

15 	Q. 	-- you will answer it yes or.no• 

16 	A, 	Yes,, sir. 

1/ 	Q.. 	If I ask you a question and a-k you if something is 

ect or incorrect, you will dei that too, correct? 

19 	A. Correct. 

20 	 THE COURT: I beg your pardon. There is no such 

21 	rule that you have to do that, although counsel can ask you 

22 	to do that. Would you be willing to do that? 

23 	 THE WITNESS: If it could he answered with yes or 

2 	no, I will do my best. If I feel that -- 

25 	 THE COURT: And iT you can't, you will say you  
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can't do it yes or no? 

THE WITNESS: Yes. 

THE COURT: Fair enough. Proceed. 

THE WITNESS: Thank you, sir. 

	

Q. 	Thank you. Now, you said you treat about a thousand 

patients or more a year? 

	

A. 	No, a thousand shoulders. 

	

Q. 	And a thousand knees? 

A. ApproxiMately. 

	

10 	Q, 	So about 2,000 paticnt a year? 

	

11 	A. 	Yes. 

	

12 	9. 	How much did you make in your prmctice in 2012? 

	

13 	 MR. HERBERT: Objection. 

	

14 	A. 	I don't see any relevance to that question. Do 1 have 

	

15 	to answer that? 

	

16 	Q. 	You don't want to answer that? 

	

27 	 MR. HERBERT: Objection. 

	

10 	 THE COURT: Yes, there is no relevance. 

	

.19 	Sustained. 

	

20 	Q. 	Bow much money did you make testifying in court in 

21 2012? 

	

22 	A. 	When I testify, I ask for $0,500. So you do the math 

	

23 	better than me: 

24 	Q. 	!So its about $60,000 a year juat for testifying in 

25 20127 
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7. Is this about money? I don't understand. 

I), 	Could you pj.ease answer my questiou? Yeti said you 

would answet my question it T asked yes or no. 

A, 	You are right. T didn't know where you were going. 

The answer is yes,  

0. 	Right about 1460,000 Just for .tifying in 2032, 

rre t 

A. 	Yes, sir 

Q- 	And o5 the 1,000 or 2,000 patients that you saw in 

2012, bow any of those were related to people who sustained 

injuries ln accident*? 

A. 	Oh, I have no idea about that. 

Q. 	Well, was It half? 

A. 	I doubt It. 

Q. 	Less than half? 

Yes. 

Q. 	Any number that 'comes to mind that you could give us 

an estimate? 

A. 	Na= I see too many patients to keep that statistic i 

my bead, 

Q. 	You keep no eo s about than 

A. 	1 keep records on every patient, bu I ón't. keep a 

statistic.T see ten patle,,ts on OX.,•101, 

Q. 	Where do you get most of youc referrals ftom? 

A. 	Physi4lans, chiropracto , friends. 



272 

CROSS - DR. BERKOWITZ - NEWMAN 	 243 

Q. Lawyers? 

A. 	Lawyers, not Most. They are a very small part. 

Q. 	Do you know the law firm of Krente & Guzman.? 

A. 	Irertts & Guzman, no. I know Krentsel & Guzman. 

Q, 	Krentsel & Guzman.? 

A. 	Yes, 

Q. 	Have they referred clients to you? 

A. 	Yes. 

Q. 	And, approximately, how many have they referred to you 

	

0 	over the years? 

	

11 	A_ 	A few a year.. I wooldn't say they arp any major 

12 significance. 

	

13 	Q. 	For over how many years? 

	

14 	A, 	I have no idea_ 

	

15 	Q. 	You have no idea about how many years Krentsel & 

Guzman have been referring clients to you? 

	

11 	A. 	I have so many hundreds of referral sources. I have 

	

18 	no idea thaL I am dealing with their law firth for two years, or 

	

19 	nine years, or 15 years. But 1 do know their name. 

	

20 	Q. 	Do you have other law firms that regularly refer 

	

21 	clients to you? 

	

22 	A, 	There are some firms that send patients to me, yes. 

	

23 	Q. 	How many other law firms regularly send you patients? 

24 	A. Regularly? 

25 	Q. 	Yes. 
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A. 	Net many. 

Q,. 	How many? 

MR. HERBERT: Objection- 

Q. 	How many in 2012? 

MR. HERBERT: Objection. 

THE COURT; He can answer.  

A. 	I Can't give you a number yes or n2 or something 

that nature. 

Q. 	Moro than a hundred less, than a hundred? 

A. 	Less than a hundred. Oh my GpcL 

Q. 	Can you give me any estimate? 

A, 	Ten, 15. 

0, 	now about. in 2011, how many law firms have referred 

clients to you? 

A. 	1', can't give you that kind of imformacion because I 

don't keep that in my heed. I am a. treating physician, not a 

	

17 	statistics physician, 

Q. 	Do you know how Ms. iovine came to you? 

	

19 	A. 	I don't have that in my record that I brought. with me. 

	

20 	Q. 	Is there some other record that's back at your office 

	

21 	or someplace else that you didn't bring with you? 

22 

	

23 	information that's not relevant. I brought the clinical 

21 

O. 	So you don't.. 	' who brought or recommended 

A. 	Just background information meaning insurance 

evant information. 
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Tovino to you is relevant? 

A. 	For the jury, no, 

Q. 	If Krentsel & Guzman recommended her to you, wouldn't 

that be: relevant in your opinion'? 

A. 	To what? Aelevant to what? 

THE COURT! See, the agreement was yes, no or I 

can't answer-  yes or no 

THE WITNESS: I can't answer yes or no, Thank 

you, sir, 

1.0 	Q. 	Sc what •kind of other records are there that you 

11 	didn't bring today to the courthouse? 

12 	A. 	Billing records on the patient. 

13 	Q. 	You knew you were testifying today and you have done 

1 	 least 20 times before, correct? 

15 	A 4 	 Yes, sit. 

16 	Q. 	And you purpose1y chose to bring certain records and 

17 	not othet records, correct? 

18 	A. AbsOuteIy. 

19 	IQ• 	Now, when Ms. Iovino first came to you, that was at 

20 	he beginning of 2011? I'm sorry, at the beginning of November 

21 	of 2011? 

22 	A. 	Yes, sir. 

23 	Q. 	And she gave you a history at the time, correct? 

24 	A. 	Yes. 

25• 	Q. 	And she told you she was involv d in some kind of an 
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accident on October 3, 2011? 

A. 	Yes, sir, 

Q, 	And she told you she went to Coney Island Hospital the 

next day'? 

A. 	Yes. 

Q. 	And What else did she tell you on the first visit__ 

A. 	The history about the problems that she is feeling in 

her left shoulder. 

Q. 	And you asked he± if she had problems or complaints to 

her left shoulder before? 

A. 	Yes, sir. 

Q. 	And she told you. no? 

A. Yes, 

Q. 	And you didn't investigate that any further, correct.? 

i. Correct. 

Q. 	You didn't look at any of her prior doctors records 

to see if there were any complaints about shoulder problems or 

anything like that, correct? 

A. 	That's correct. 

Q. 	And She told you she had right shoulder surgery, 

correct? 

A. 	Y.8. 

Q. 	Did she tell you she was in a. prior accident in 2008? 

A. 	Yes. 

And as a result of that prior accident in 2008, she 
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had to have shoulder surgery to her right shoulder? 

A. 	Yes, sir. 

Q. 	Did she tell you Who performed the surgery? 

A. 	I didn't ask. 

Q. 	Did she also tell you in that prior accident in 200a, 

she also injured her neck and her back?' 

A. 	I didn't ask. 

Q. 	So you,  didn't take a complete history from her about 

her medical picture completely, you Just asked her certain 

10 	questions about her left shoulder and What she Claims hapoened 

IT 	to her, correct? 

12 	A. 	Yes, sir_ 

13 	Q. 	Now, were you aware that. Ms. Iovino had been seeing 

1.4 	another orthopediC surgeon after this October 3, 2011 accident 

15. 	up Until. the time she first saw you? 

10 	A. 	I don't have that written, down but somehow T do recall 

17 	that she mentioned something to me, but I didn't get into it. 

18 	1 didn't write it down, so it didn't bother me. 

19 	Q. 	Who is the orthopedist who she had. been seeing? 

20 	A, 	I don't remember that. 

21 	Q, Did you ever contact that orthopedist? 

22 	A. 	No. 

23 	Q i 	Did you ever get his office records? 

24 	A, No. 

25 	Q. 	The first visit that you had With her, did you take 
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A. 	No. 

Q. 	Where was that, office visit, by the way? 

A. 	I be] eve it: was in my Brooklyn office. 

Q. 	That's not listed on your letterhead, correct, only 

the Kew Gardens offce is listed? 

A. 	Maybe in 2012 it maanit alste0, but they ar all 

ted now. 

Q. 	But in 2011, you 

Gardens o“ice was on 

A. 	Yes. 

had a Brooklyn office but only your 

your letterhead, correct? 

12 
	

Q. 	Okay. When she came to you, she had certain 

13 corapl&inta, correct? 

14 	A. 	Yes. 

15 	Q. 	And they were aboUt her iet shoulder, correct? 

26 	A. 	Yes. 

17 	Q. 	Was she also 
	 g about her neck? 

18 	A. 	Yes. 

19 	Q. 	And you did some testing on her? 

20 	A, Yes. 

21 	Q. 	And you described the testing that you did on your 

22 	direct examination, correct? 

23 	A. 

24 	Q. 	And there 1.9 a difference betweon subjective 

2 
	complaintS and objective complaini-s, correct? 
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A. 	Yes, 

Q. 	So if a patient that you are examining is complaininq 

about pain, that's a subjective complaint, correct? 

A. 	Yes. 

Q. 	And the way you do range of motion testing is you ask 

a patient to lift their arm,  over their head, correct? 

A. 	How I do the test personally? 

Q. 	Yes. 

	

9 	A. 	Part of the test is asking the patient to see what 

	

10 	they can do. 

	

11 	Q. 	And j.f the patient _says, "I -can Only raise my arm to 

	

12 	here and then it starts to hurt", you don't forge the arm up 

	

13 	higher correct? correct? You rely upon what the patient is,  telling 

	

14 	you. 

	

15 	A. 	No t don't do. that. Don't iOrgete I am in the 

	

16 	ptactice for 30. years. I am very aware of that. 

	

17 	Q. 	can you answer the question? 

	

la 	A. 	r am trying to. 

Q. 	Can you answe' it yes or no? Do you force the arm up 

	

20 	higher if the patient says at some point "my atm hurts'? 

	

21 	A. 	T don't force, but I move the aim beyond where the 

	

22 	pa.tierit. says, 

	

23 	
So you move it beyond where the patient says it hurts 

	

24 	to Make it hurt mote,? 

	

25 	A. 	Yes. 
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Q. 	And that's how you do the testing of the arm, over a 

head and out, to the side and to the ,back? 

A. 	No. What T do is this, I give the patient an 

opportunity to move the sh.ou'der1  in, this Case, on her own. 

ThenI take over the examination and I see differences. between 

what she does and what. I do. If there is rip significant 

differences, I don't have to record it. 

Q. 	So if 1 say, "my arm hurts here", and you start to 

move it up and I Say, "Oh, my God. It hurts more. Don't do 

that", you stop, correct? 

A. 	No. 

Q, 	So you keep pushing it Op-  higher even though the 

patient is. complaining it hurts like- heck? 

A. 	Everybody has a. different. physical examination. As an 

orthopedic surgeon With 30 years of experience I think J know 

the difference when a patient :1.8 telling me it really hurts and 

it. doesn't. 

Q. 	So you filter out whether you think the patient is 

being truthful or not truthful during your examination, is 

that -,- 

A. 	ThatJs a good truth. 

Q. 	So if a patient is complaining 

MR. HERBERT: Objection. Could you ask him not 

to yell at the doctor? 

MR. NEWMAN: I am not. ye3ling. 
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THE COURT: I don't find you to be yelling. Go 

ahead... 

Q. 	Again, if the patient says, "Please stop. Pont do 

that. My arm hurts when you are making me move it higher", you 

disregard that if you think the patient is not telling the 

truth? 

A. Correct,  

Q. 	And you keep moving it higher? 

	

9 	A. 	I try. 

	

10 	Q. 	And you are not listening to the patient's complaints 

	

11 	because that's not your concern. 

	

12 	A 	I always listen to the patient. Its not so rigid the 

	

13 	tqay you are trying to make it look. 

	

14 	Q. 	Okay. Than you, doctor. 

	

15 	A. 	My pleasure. 

	

16 	Q, 	Now, you are aware that 'Ms. lovino had an MJ done on 

17he left shoulder, correct? 

	

18 	A. Yes. 

	

19 	Q. 	You didn't send her for that MRI, correct? 

	

20 	A. No, it 

	

21 	Q. 	Do you know who sent her for that MRI? 

	

22 	A. 	No. 

	

23 	Q. 	Do you know where it was conducted? 

	

24 	A. 	Yes. 

	

25 	Q. 	Where was that? 
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A. 	It's written on the sheet. Actually, I do know who 

sent tier because it ays that on the sheet. It was done by a 

place called Park Avenue Radiology. 

Q. 	Ate you referring to that -- is that the rept of the 

4 I that was done? 

A. 	Yes, sir. 

Q. 	And that's part of your file, c 	et? 

is.. 	Yes, sir. 

Q. 	According to that report who sent •her to Park Avenue 

Radiology to have that MRI conducted? 

A. 	It's a little hard to tead tha last name, but .it's 

David E. Carola, C-A-R-0-1-A. There is some other letter there 

that I can't quite read. 

Q. 	How about CapiOla? 

A. 	You got it. That must be it'. 

Q. 	When was that done? 

Ai 	The date is 1D/20/2011. 

Q. 	Okay. And, doctor, an MR1 is a radiographic study, 

correc 

A•. 	Yes. 

Q. 	An X ray is used principally to see or look at bones? 

A. 	Yes, sir. 

Q. 	And an MI ts prircipaliy to øok at soft tissue, 

correct, because an X ray can't detect 

A, 	It's much bettor, It is definitely true what you ac 
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saying, 

Q. 	0 Dr. Capiola on October 20, 2011, sent her for an 

MRT at Park Avenue Radiologists, correct? 

A. 	I think that was the date of the MRI. Probably sent 

her a little bit before. 

Q. 	Fair enough. She had th MRI done on October 20, 2011 

Park Avenue Radiologists'? 

A. 	Yes. 

Q. 	Are you familiar with their practice? 

18 	A. 	No. You mean capiola or Park Avenue? 

ii 	Q 	No, Park Avenue. 

A. 	I am familiar with neither. 

13 	Q. 	irair enough. But this typically would be something 

14 	that you would do in your practi 	
You would send a patient 

15 	of yours to a radiology group to have an MRT done on a shoulder 

16 	or a knee -- 

17 	A. 	Yes sir. 

18 	Q. 	ot A hip or something of that nature if you were 

39 	investigating a source of pain and you thought it was because 

20 	of soft tissue, correct?  

Yes, 21 	A. 

22 	Q. 	And radIologists are a medical specialty group, 

23 •correct? 

24 	A. 	Yes. 

25 	Q. 	They are licensed medical doctors? 
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A. 	Yes. 

	

Q. 	And their specialty is reading radiographic films, 

rays, MRI's, CAT scans, things of that nature, correct? 

	

A. 	Ye.a, 

	

Q. 	And they have more familiarity with reading those 

films of CAT scans) MRI's, X rays than you would as an 

orthopedic surgeon, correct? 

	

A. 	Not necessarily,  I would not necessarily say they 

have or experience than I do, I have seen thousands of 

patients per year.. I have seen thousands of MRI's, And at 

this point I am pretty experienced. 

So- a. board certified radiologist in your mind wou7d 

have the same experience in reading.  MRI films as you. would? 

	

A, 	If not better but yes. 

	

Q. 	So you believe you are in a better position to read. 

MR] films than a board' certified radiologist? 

No, I said if not better for them. 

	

Q, 	Oh, the board, certified radiologist i$ in a beLLer 

position? 

	

A,• 	Ye 	I am similar' but I Chiflk they would be a lot 

better at it. 

	

Q. 	Because, that's all they do for a living? 

	

A. 	Yes

Q. 	

; 

You got this report from Park Avenue Radiologists? 

A. Yes 
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Q. 	Where did you get it from? 

A. 	Tt was faxed to my-  office. 

Q. 	Liy who? 

A. 	When the patient comes in, they ask the patient if 

there are any relevant MI's for the reason that you are coming 

here to see me. 

Q. 	So is. Iovino fa;<ed it to you? 

A, 	No, no. I said when the patient comes in, we ask the 

patient were there any relevant MI's done. She iouid answer 

yes, 

Q , 	I'm sorry. I misunderstood- So yeu. called Park 

	

12 	Avenue Radiologists to fax over the report? 

	

3 	A. 	That's the most likely Scenario ol! what happened, 

14 Q.SUt do you know in this case? 

	

15 	A. No, 

0, 	Is there any faxed banner on it to ndicate it was 

	

17 	faxed to you? 

	

18 	A. 	I am not involved in that procurement process. I just 

19 	want to know if there is an MRI, let. me see it, Flow the. girls 

20 	in., the ofeice get it, 1 leave up to their ingenuity, 

Q. 	When you got the MRI report, did you read it? 

A. 	Yes, sir. 

Q. 	And did you also get the MRI films that accompanied 

A. 	NO, 

-- that this repOrt related to? 
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A. 	No. 

Q. 	Wouldn't it be important for you to see the films? 

A, 	Depends. It depends on what the MRT said and it 

depends on what  my examination is looking for'. In this case, 

did not need them. 

Q. 	Well, was the MRI report consistent with your 

examination of Ms. Iovino and the opinions that you started to 

forMulate about the lahrum tear? 

	

9 	 That was the only exception. The only exception was 

	

10 	that she had a positive O'Brien's test on examination and it 

made me wonder aboOt a labral tear. But my treatment for that 

	

32 	versus the impingement would not have differed. She would have 

	

13 	needed physical therapy. Injection would still be helpful for 

	

14 	pain, not for a iabral tear, it would still help with pain for 

the impingement. So it wouldn't have altered anything. If she 

	

16 	would have gotten better conservatively, we wouldn't be herd 

	

.17 	having this discussion, 

Q. 	Thank you for that speech, doctor. 

	

la 	A. 	My pleasure. 

	

20 	Q. 	Can we go through the MRT report? 

	

21 	A, 	Anything you would Iike, 

	

22 	Q. 	So starting with the findings 

	

23 	 MR, HERBERT: May we approach, your Honor? 

24 	 THE COURT: Yes 

25 	 (Off-the-record diseussion held at the bench) 
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THE COURT': Please continue. I am asking counsel 

to continue, 

Q. 	Dr. Berkowitz, when you got. this MRI report from Park 

venue Radiologists,' 	did you read it? 

A. Yes. 

Q. 	Isn't It a fact that you relied upon it in part in 

your examination and diagnosis .and treatment plan :for 

Ms. Iovita? 

A. 	In part. 

10 
	

Q. 	Okay, so let's go through the report, 

1i 	A. 	My pleasure. Can I ask you one favor, sir? My copy 

12 	is a little bit hard to read. 

13 	Q. 	I think we have a subpoenaed copy. 

)4 	A, 	If you have one, it would be very helpful to me. 

15 	 MR. NEWMAN: Judge, may I? 

16 	 THE COURT: You can approach the subpoenaed 

17 	records. 

18 	 MR. NEWMAN: Thank you. 

19 	
COURT OFFICER: Excuse me, Your Honor. The 

20 	jurors are asking for a break. 

21 	 THE COURT: Let's take a five-minute recess. Do 

22 	not discuss the case. Keep an open mind. Do not form any 

23 	Judgment about the case. 

24 	 COURT OFFICER: Jury exiting. 

25 	 (At this time, the jury left the courtroom) 
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THE :COURT: There will be a flve-minute recess 

for ev.ryone. A break was requested by the jury. They 

need to use the facilitieS. If you want, you can take five 

niinute vouraelf. I will stand by since I have, nowhere to 

go. 

We will be breaking at 430 and coming back 

Monday at 10t.00. 

MR, HERBERT: Can Your Honor ask counsel how much 

time he anticipates? 

THE COURT: You are rree to Confer with him now, 

if you would like. 

(RECESS TAKEN) 

   

	

13 	 THE COURT! tWerybody ready? 

	

14 	 R. HER T1 Ye,' Sir- 

	

15 	 THE COURT: Everybody stay seated except for 

	

16 	Mr. Newman. 

	

17 	 COURT OFFICER: Tory entering. 

1 
	

(At this time, the jury entered the courtroom) 

	

19 	 THE COURT: jury panel is present. You may 

	

20 	Continue. 

	

21 
	

MR. NEWMAN: Judge, may I show the witness a 

22 
	

better copy of the Park Avenue radiology report? 

23 
	

THE COURT: Have you had a chance to look at it, 

24 	counsel?  

25 
	

MR. HERBERT: Yes, YOux Honor. 
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THE COURT Show it to the witness, 

Doctor, is, dlat a better copy for your review? 

A. 	Much better. 

O. 	Good. So let's go through it... It's an MR1 to the 

eft shomidex, correct? 

	

6 	A. 	Yes. 

Q. 	Of Jessica Ioviuo that was done on October 20, 2011? 

A. 	Yes. 

	

9 	Q. 	And then under the. "Findin " section, it has "Normal. 

	

10 	supraspinatus tendon", correct? 

	

ii 	A. 	Yes. 

	

12 	Q. 	And °normal infraspinatus tendon", correct? 

	

13 	A. 	Yes. 

	

14 	Q. 	What's the difference between the suprespinatus and 

	

15 	the infraspinatu 	In fact, if you can use the chart for us to 

	

16 	help us understand. 

	

1.7 	A. 	It's no problem. 1 could, if you want. It's very 

	

18 	simple,  As 	
showed you before, there are' a number of 

	

19 	different muscles that turn into a. confluent white tendon. 

	

2.0 	Those are actually three different muscles that join together 

	

21 	to make the tendon of the rotator cuff. 

	

22 	Q. 	Those are reported as normal by the radiologist. who 

	

21 	road these MRI films, correct.? 

	

24 	A. 	Yes. 

	

25 	Q. 	And then the radiologist found "normal teres minor 
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t 	correct? 

A, Yes, 

Q. 	And then nomal deltoid muscle, correct? 

A. 	Yes. 

Q. 	And nortaI long Oicipital tendon, correct.? 

A. 	Yes. 

And a normai.. intracapsular segmentl  correct? 

A. 	Yes, 

Q. 	And 4 rormi reflective pulley, correct? 

A. Yes 

0, 	And,. then continuin9.  on the ne;,:t page,. 	e found a 

81 humeral, head, correct? 

A, 	Yes, 

Q 
	And then it , s also reported by the radiologist that 

there is • a normal glenohUmeral articulation without a labral 

tear, correct? 

A. 	Yes. 

Q. 	That's what the radiologist who eact these films of 

Tovino s s left shoulder reported of her interpretation or 

his intexpretaton of reading these fUms, correct? 

A. 	That's correct, ye,, 

0, 	And then there are other normal findings, correct? 

A, Yea, 

And the ippression that the radiologist had was mild 

subacromial-subdeltoid bursitis, corre 
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A. 	Yes, sir. 

MR. HERBERT: Your Honor, may we approach? 

THE, COURT:. Not at this time. Please continue. 

Q. 
	And then the radiologist reports "otherwise 

unremarkable MRI of the shoulder"? 

A. 	Yes, 

Q. 	So the only thing that the radiologist Was reporting 

wos bursitis? 

A. 	Thatls correct,  

Q. 	And the radiologist. is not reporting that there is any 

labral tear that,s depicted in the MR1 flms of the left 

shoulder, correct? 

A. 	Yes. 

Q. 	Now, bursitis is an inflaimmation of the bursa, 

correct? 

.1 	Yes. 

0. 	And explain for us what the bursa is. 

la• 	A, 	The bursa is a soft tissue that ordinarily is not 

19 	visible in particular joints such as the elbow. We are all 

20 	familiar sometimes a person banks an elbow and it gets all 

21 	s oilen, The body has a mechanism by which a buxsal tissue 

22 	which :;:5 normally something that you can barely see even with 

23 	microscope, that when something is irritated inside the 

24 	shoulder and the body would prefer that you dont move that 

25 	joint, let it the rest and recover, it causes the bursal tissue 

10 

11 

12 
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14 
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to become inflamed and swollen. And when it does that,'its 

like a layer of acid. 

Q. 	Again, I just asked you what: the bursa was. I didn't 

ask you for a medical analysis, okay. Just tell us what the 

bursa is- 

A. 	Maybe I did-  already, 

Q. 	What is the function of the bursa in the human anatomy 

in the shoWder? 

A. 	Can I now go back to where 7 was? 

Q. 	Na. :Just explain for us 
• what the bursa is, what it 

does. 

A. 	The bursa is a protective tissue that remains quiet 

and almost not visible until there is an. Inflammatory problem 

in that particular joint and, then it becomes inflamed to try• to 

protect that joint from motion. 

Q. 	And that's what's called bursitis, correct? 

A. 	Yes. 

Q. 	And the "itis" at the end of bursitis is Greek or 

whatever the root is for inflammation, correct"  

A. 	Yes, like laryngitis- 

Q. 	So bursitis is an inflammation of the bursa? 

A. 	Yes. 

Q. 	And typically inflammation of the .bursa comes from a 

'etitive movement over time, norreat? 

A. 	it's one of the things that are typical. 
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Q. 	Well, that's one of the typical ways that a bursa 

becomes inflamed and a patient develops bursitis, it . from 

repetitive motion aver time, correct? 

A. 	yes, it could be from repetitive motion. 

Q. 	And it's less likely that it tomes from one single 

traumatic event, correct? 

A.. 	If a person has one single traUmatio event, then it 

could easily occur that the patient has a bursal inflammation, 

Q. 	Well, doesn't there have to be a certain force or 

10 	mechanism involved to cause the bursa to become inflamed by one 

11 	single trautatic event? 

12 	A. 	There's never been a study -- that actually it a very 

13 	good queStion. There' never been a. study that actually said 

you need to have X amount of force applied across a joint to 

get an episode of swelling_ 8o it's a hard question to answer. 

Q, 	So I can blimp into a lectern here just. 'like that and. 

17 	develop bursitis in my shoulder? 

In, your elbow. 

19 	Q. 	In my elbow. So if I hit the eotern like that T can 

20 	develop bursitis? 

21 	A, 	r don't know if that's all it takes but cerLainly -- 

22 	Q. 	You don't. know -- 

23 	
THE COURT: He is nswer.flq. Let idm finish. 

24 	 MR. NEWMAN; I'm sorry, 

25 	A. 	I am trying to say there is no study that says you 
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have to hit it with, 34 pounds of force or 80 pounds of force, 

bat it's a great question, 

Q. 	So you don't know what part of Ms. Iovino's arm was 

struck by this accident, correct? 

A. 	I don't, personally know, but she said that she had 

blunt trauma to her shoulder. She said that 

TTE COURT: We are going to take a recess, 80 I 

can get you out of here by 4:30. We need you back on 

Monday. Tomorrow is Friday and 	have a motion calendar. 

So you have a break tomorrow while I do the calendar. We 

see you on Monday at ten a_m, Between now ad then don't 

discuss the case.. Keep open. mind, Form no judgments about 

13 	the case. Have a great and safe weekend- Follow the 

L4 	officer 	We will, see you. 

15 	 COURT OFFICER.: JUry exiting, 

16 	 (Al: this time, the jury left the courtroom

1.7 	

) 

THE COURT: All right, so you may step down at 

0 	this time. Do not discusS your testimony during the recess 

[ 	period- We will see probably on. Monday morning. Counsel 

20 	can speak to you about scheduling but cannot speak to you 

21 	about your testimony, 

22 	 MR. NEWMAN: Can we talk about scheduling? 

2.3 	 THE COURT: Monday morning we are meeting. We 

24 	are not meeting on Monday morning?' That's what I told the 

25 	jury. 
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THE COURT: Okay. Are we ready to go? 

MR. NEWMAN: Yes. 

THE COURT: Let's get the jury oat. 

(D OV BERK. 0WIT2, having resumed the 

witness stand, was examined and testified further as 

THE COURT: IL's a little warm in here. I am 

going to tell the jury since it's a little warm that I told 

you to remove your jacket. 

We are ready for the jury. 

COURT OEFICER: Jury entering. 

(At this time, the iury entered the courtroom) 

THE COURT: Everyone be seated. Good morning, 

everyone. Please do continue to make your efforts to get 

here on time, o%ay. 

Now, it's a ljttle warm in here so I told all of 

the parties here that if they wanted to, they could take 

their jackets bff. The doctor took advantage of it. 

Counsels decided to keep their jackets on We are still on 

cross-examination. 

Mr. Newman, you can pick Up wherever you want. 

Doctor, you are 5.013 under oath. 

THE WITNESS: Yes. 

MR. NEWMAN: Judge, may I move the lectern? 

THE COURT: Yes 1  you can. Hold the bottom and 
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the top together. They are not connected. 

CONTINUED CROSS EXAMINATION 

BY MR. NEWMAN: 

	

Q. 	Good morning, doctor. 

	

A. 	Good morning, sir. 

We were talking on Thursday about Ms. Iovino's left 

shoulder. DO you recall that? 

	

A. 	Yes, sir, 

	

Q. 	And she went to Coney Island Hospital the day after 

10 	the accident. You are familiar With that, correct? 

11 	A. 	Yes. 

12 	Q. 	She had some subjective complaints when she vent to 

13 	Corey Island Hospital, correct, doctor? 

14 	A. 	She had complaints, yes. 

15 	Q. 	They examined her and found no abnormalities, correct, 

16 doctor? 

17 	A. 	No abnormalities? I a•m itot sure if that 	the case. 

18 	T don't have that right in front of me now. 

19 	Q. 	Isn't the Coney 'island record part of the your file 

20 	her ? 

21 

22 	have slipped. Oh, wait, wait.. No slipping. Right here. I 

23 	got it. 

24 	Q. 	Let me refer you to Page 0 of 23. 

25 	A. 	Coming right up. Got it. 

A. 	Yes, and it vas there when I left. Apparently, it may 
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Q. 	The lower third of the page- 

A, 	Yes, 

Q. 	It says "pain pre-evaluatiOn"? 

A. 	"UnscheduJed pain, pre-evaluation", that one? 

Q. 	Yes, And then it is says., "left upper arm, no 

observable abnormalities- It hurts a lot." 

A, 	Yes. 

Q. 	So at the emergency room they examined her left 

shoulder and found no left upper art observable abnormalities, 

10 correct? 

11 	A. 	That's what it says. 

12 	Q. 	And If she had torn her labrum in this accident the 

13 	day before, wOuldn't you expect there to be some evidence of 

14 	bruising on her left arm or shoulder? 

15 	A, 	3tilising, not necessarily, no. You don't have to have 

16 	visible signs. A labral tear is a soft tissue tear in the 

17 	depth of the shoulder. When you have bleeding or bruising from 

J8 	that, it can take days and days for it to eventually surface to 

19 	the •skin, 

20 	Q, 	If it came from an external event, wouldn't there be 

21 	some appearance of some kind of bruise on her shoUlder that 

22 	would be observable, swelling, blaok and blue marks, some kind 

23 	of observable abnormality on her left shoulder? 

24 	A. 	With these type of soft tissues injuries, no fractures 

25 	and things of that nature, it's not -- 



U .  

12 

306 

CROSS - DR. BERKOWITZ - NEWMAN 	 277 

Q. 	Thanks, doctor. Can you answer the question, doctor? 

THE COURT: I am going to direct you to let the 

doctor finish the question before your next .question is 

asked 

You were Interrupted -- 

MR. NEWMAN: I apologize.. 

THE COURT: Don't interrupt me either, Take your 

answer and you can give it again, if you would like. 

THE WITNESS; Thank you, sir. 

What I was trying to explain, i understand the 

point you are trying to,  make and I am not trying to be 

difficult, What I an trying to say is, soft. tissue 

23 
	

injuries in the shoulder, not fractures, not. dislocations, 

14 	you don't necessarily have to see a visible mark on the 

15 
	

shoulder or a visible swelling at the time of the injury. 

16 	it could take a long time for that to come oUt. So the 

17 	answer -- 

18 	Q. 	I'm sorry, I didn't mean to interrupt, 

39 	A. 	SO the answer to that is not necessarily. 

20 	Q. 	And this is 24. hours after the accident and you find, 

21 	nothing unusual about that, that there is no evidence of any 

22 	kind of abhormality, no black and blue mark/  no swelling? 

23 	A. 	No. 

24 	Q. 	Nothing on the.. left arm or shoulder to indicate that 

25 	she had subjected the left arm and shoulder to a traumatic 
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event tha aoy befCre, coat? 

A. 	Correct. That's otactiy correct, 

Q. 	Bo you told us on Thursday that sh.e saw you several 

times. 17)efore you did the surgery at the end.  of December of 

2011, correct? 

Yes. 

Q, 	And th 	rory was done at Franklin Hospital? 

A- 
	Yes, sir. 

And where is that loateW 

A. 	Valley StreaM,  

Q. 	is that where you. had privilege? 

12 	A. Yes. 

Q. 	00 you have privileges at 

A. 	yes. 

Q. 	Where are they? 

A. 	The New York Hospital of Queens in Queens and the 
TX:in 

Centex in Mineola, Long Island. 

0- 	Any other hoSpitals in Manhattan or Btookly 

A. 	Can: go to too,  many. It's too Much time. 

20 	Q. 	No hospitals in Brooklyn, correct? 

21 	A- 	No. 

22 	Q. 	Now, the procedure that you performed was a day 

23 procedure, correct? 

24 	A, 	It was a day procedure. Day, yes. 

25 	Q. 	And the. procedure itself from the time you did the 

1.1 

14 

15 

17 

18 

1 
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incision to the time that the ,incision was closed took about a 

half hour,. correct? 

A. 	1 don't have the exact -- If you have the time, you 

can let me Julow but, usually speaking, from the time the 

patient gets into the room Until they get, out of the room is, 

approximately, one hour. 

Q. 	Bt I am talking about the proCedure Itself, 

A. 	Surgical. time goeS anywhere in. there. 

Q. 	Let me show yo U a. copy of a portion., of the Franklin 

10 	Hospital record:that's in eviden 

11 	A- 	Sure. 

12 	Q. 	It's the intraoperative record. Would, you take a look 

13 at 

14 
	 THE COURT: What exhibit is that in evidence? 

15 	 Please give that item to the. clerk, 

16 	 MR. NEWMAN: I believe it's Plaintiff's 2. 

17 	 THE COURT: What 	Plaintiff's 2 in evidence? 

lB 	 THE CLERIC: I have Franklin Hospital 

19 	
THE COURT: We will make that 2-1\. The "A" means 

20, 	it's part of Exhibit 2 that's already in evidence. 

21 	 There is no objection to it admission? 

22 	 MR. HERBERT: No, your Honor. 

23 	 'THE COURT: Fine. 

24 	
,(Received and marked Plaintiff's Exhibit 2-A in 

25 	evidence) 

9 



309 

CROSS - DR, BERKOWITZ - NEWMAN 	 280 

THE' WITNESS: Thank you. I have it. 

Dr. Berkowitz, at the top there are times that the 

incieton began ad the closure ended, 

A. Yes, 

Q. 	The procedure, correct 

A. 	Yes, 

Q. 	And the whole procedure took about 31 minutes, 

correct? 

A. Yes, 

	

10 	Q. 	So that was the entirety of the time that you Look to 

	

11 	do the labrum debridement and the decOmpression on Ms. Iovino's 

	

12 	left shoulder was 31 minutes, correct? 

	

13 	A. 	Yes, 

	

14 	Q, 	Now, when you did the procedure, you put a camera in 

	

5 	to see what you were doing in there, correct? 

	

16 	A. 	Of course. 

	

17 	Q. 	Okay, And the biceps were intact, Correct? 

	

18 	A.. 	Yes. 

	

19 	Q. 	And yob. saw a SLAP tear in the labrum at the 3:00 

20 	position, correct, doctor? 

21 	A. 	Yesr  I showed that. 

22 	Q. 	And that SLAP tear was inditatiVe of a repetitive 

23 	motion that caused the labruntear that you found in the 

24 correct? 

25 	A. 	Absolutely not, 
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Q. 	Now-, you didn l iz do a. repair of the labruml  correct? 

A. 	That's correct. 

Q. 	You, jUst put the shaver in and you cleaned up the 

frayed_ edges, correct? 

A. 	Not the frayed_ It's not just doing that. 

Q. 	What did, you do, doctor? 

A, 	removed the torn part of the tissue to create a 

stable situation so that the teat does not propul gate and get 

even larger than it was. 

Q. 	Right. There were frayed edges that you had to clean 

UP, .correct? 

A. 	No, Sir. There's no trayed edges. There is a SLAP 

tear, P., tear traytng suggests a different problem. There was 

no fraying. 

Q. 
	You didn't do a repair, correct? 

A. 	That's correct. 

Q. 	And, you also found a significant amount of fluid in 

there correct? 

A. 	Where do you see that? 

Q. 	
In the radiology report it says, "there was marked 

hypertrophic synovial and hyperemic bUrsal tissue response." 

A. 	That's different than fluid, sir. 

Q. 	It's not fluid. What we are talking about here again 

iô the inflammation of the bursa, correct? 

A. 	That's the hyperemic bursitis. That means that there 
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blood in the bursal tissue that's inflamed. 

Q. 	What you saw there, again, was from repetitive motion, 

I. caused by an individual traumatic event, correct? 

R. HERBERT: Objection. 

THE COURT: May I have that question read back? 

(The requested pottion was read by the court 

reporre 

THE COURT: You rny answer that. 

A. 	Absolutely incorrect. There is no evidence to suggest 

such a mechanism of in Ory of repetitive motion injury in this 

patient, none, 

	

Q. 	Thank you, doctor. Now, Thesi she left the day op at 

FrankUñ Hospital that day, she was in tsling? 

	

A. 	Yes, sir. 

	

Q. 	She wOre that Ear about two weeks, correct? 

	

A, 	Yes. 

	

Q. 	Aid then at some point he returned to you ahd you 

xemoved.the stitches that closed the three portal incisions 

that you made, correct? 

A. Correct, 

21 	Q. 	And she started on a course of physical therapy, 

22 	correct, with a physical therapist?,  

23 	A. Yes, 

24 	Q. 	And 6.f. ter you removed the, eutuLes, the a6,tches, when 

25 	was the next time she returned to your •oEfice? 
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THE WITNESS May I consult my records.? 

THE COURT: Yes-. 

A, 	Okay. So the surgery date was the.. 28th: of December, 

right hefore the new year. The first post-op visit was 

January 9th, January 9th, At that date the sutures were 

removed and she was given a prescription to begin a program of 

physical therapy. The first date .aftor that you asked? 

Q. 	Yes. 

A. 	Was March 19th, 2012. 

10 	Q. 	And at that time you exaMined her, correct? 

11 	A, 	Yes, I did_ 

12. 	Q, 	Was She still going. to the physical therapis at that 

13-  tiMe? 

14 	A. Yes, 

25 	Q. 	Was her condition the same, Improved 

16 	A. 	She was improving. 

17 	Q, 	-- worse or anything else? 

A. 	From before the surgery to that point she showed signs 

19 	of some improvement. 

20 	Q.. 	When did she: come back to you next after March 19, 

21 2012? 

22 	A. 	September 24th, 

3 	0. 	so you didn't see her for six months, correct? 

24 	A. Correct, 

25 	Q. 	And were you aware when she returned: td you in 



313 

CROSS. - DR. BERKOWITZ - NEWMAN 	 284 

Sept Tiber of 2012, that she had ceased going to the physical 

therapist? 

A. 	Let me just see. I didn't mark down at that point if 

she. was still seeing the therapist, so I can't answer that 

question- 

Q. 	Well, I want you to assume hypothetically that she 

testified that she stopped seeing the physical therapist about 

two months after the surgery, 

A- Okay, 

Q. 	Would that be consistent with your treatment protocol 

for 

A. 	Generally speaking, therapy is from six weeks to 12 

weeks after a procedure of this magnitude- So if she had 

therapy for tWo months, that's an eight-week stint, so to 

peak, SO that's fine. 

Q. 	When she came to you on. September 24, 2-012, she was 

still complaining about pain in her left shoulder? 

A- 	She still had pain in-  the shoulder. 

Q. 
	She was still complaining about loss of range of 

motion in the left shoulder? 

A. 	Well, she didn't complain about that, I basically 

examined her and marked down what it was, 

Q,.. 	Fair enough. You didn't send her back for more 

physical therapy, correct? 

A. 	No, no. Actually, T said the plan was for her 

9 
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1 	continue rehabilitation, So I demonstrated some 'home exercises 

2 	for her because commonly the insurance company prevents the 

3 	patient from having more treatment. They stop paying for it. 

4 	So I demonstrate exercises for the patien and: that's what I 

an by doing more therapy, 

Q, 	But you weren't at home with her, so you don't know• 

whether she was doing it or nit, correct? 

A. 	No, I first demonstrated to her on September 24th. 1 

didn't demonstrate it t,o her before then. 

10 	Q. 	Okay, but she said she Stopped going to physical 

U. 	therapy.  Lwo months after the surgery which would have been 

12 	February of 2012, 

13 	A. 	Yes. 

14 	Q. 	So from February of 2012 until September of 2012, she 

15 	wasn't doing any therapy, correct? 

16 	A. 	That's correct- 

17 	Q. 	And then you taught her or gave her j.nstructions on 

16 	hew to do home therapy in September of 2012? 

19 	A. Yes, 

20 	Q. 	When was the next time you saw her? 

21 	A, 	June 24th, 2013. 

22 	Q.. 	So that was nine months latet? 

211 	A. 	Yes. 

24 	Q. 	And during those nine morths you don't know what she 

25, 	s doing, correct? 

5 

6 



4 

I0 

31 

12 

13 

14 

1,5 

16 

17 

18 

19 

2 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

315 

CROSS - DR. BFRKOWITz - NEWMAN 	 286 

A. 	Well, obviously(  I don't know everything that she is 

doing. 

0. 	Wel1., you don't _know if she was doing home therapy, 

Correct? 

A. 	Let's see. NO, I don't know. 

Q. 	Okay. And her condition was about the same in june 
ot 

2013? 

A. 	Yes, it was very similar. Similar range of motion, 

Was there a reason or do you know why she waited nine. 

months to come back to you from September' 24, 2.012 to JUDO of 

2013? 

A. 	I can't. I can only guess, 

Q.: 	We don't wart you to guess. 

A, 	Good- Sc then I won't, 

Q. 	You know she wasn't going to any other doctor for her 

left shoulder, correct? 

A. 	Not that I was aware of. 

Q. 	And. after June of 2013 	
by the way, on September 

2,4th, when you saw her, you just examined her, correct? 

A. 	What. do you mean by 'just examined her'"? 

Well, you examined her.. You checked her range of 

motion_ You asked her some questions, correct? 

A. 	at course. 

Q. 	You didn't do any overt treatment on her, correct? 

A— 	No injections-  Or anything like that, correct_ 
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Q. 	And you didn't send her any place for any kind of 

treatment, or injections, or testing, correct?' 

A. 	No, just told her to do the program at home. 

Q. 	And the same thing in Juno of 2013, you examined. her 

!Is same.  way you did. in March and in September of 2012, 

correct?' 

	

7 	A. Correct. 

When was the next time you, saw her after June of 2013? 

A, 	August 26th, 

	

10 	Q. 	Why did she come back to you the next month? 

	

11 	A. 	She said that she was still having difficulty with 

	

12 	doing stressful activities. So anything stressful to her, 

	

13 	lifting anything heavy, carrying, pw3hin, pulling, those types 

	

14 	of strnssful activities were still giving her difficulty. That 

	

15 	was the main reason why she came in 

	

16 	Q. 	HOW many more t,'-dpes did you see her in, 2013? 

	

17 	A. 	I saw her August 26th. 1 saw her - actually, my 

	

18 	associate saw her November 4th, And then I saw her again 

	

19 	December 9th,  

	

20 	Q. 	Doctor, in the medical field,  Is there something called 

	

21 	symptom magnification or secondary gain? 

	

22 	A. 	Of Course, there IS, 

	

23 	Q. 	What is that.? 

	

24 	A. 	Secondary gain is when a person has a reason for their 

	

25 	having a problem. There is some benefit to the patient by -- 
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Q. 	SUch as a lawsuit? 

A. 	A lawsuit could be one. 

THE COURT: I'M sorry is this a medical term? 

THE WITNESS: No, 

THE COURT: So what ate you talking about? 

Aren't you an expert in medicine? 

Q. 	Doctor -- 

TUE COURT: Excuse me- Whera did this term come 

from? 

10 	 THE W.TNESS: He brought it up, not me. 

11 	 THE COURT: You mean he brought op a term that 

12 	you know. what it me n 

13 	 HE WITNESS: Yes. 

14 	 THE COURT: But does it have in any way an 

15 	implication in your expertise as an orthopedic surgeon? 

16 	 THE WITNESS: ror this case, no. 

17 	 THE COURT: For any case. IS that a term you use 

18 	in your.chars or something? 

19 	 THE WITNESS: No. 

20 	 THE COURT: All right, please continue. 

21 	Q. 	Isn't that something that is taught in medical school,  

22 symptom magnification? 

MR. flERBERT: ObjectiOn. 

THE COURT: Is that premised on determining the 

credibility of the patient? 

23 

24 

25 
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THE WITNESS 	Yes. 

THE COURT.: All right, that's simple_ No doctor 

or for that matter anybody else is going te be offering an 

opinion on credibility of an individual. That's not their 

job. Credibility is for the jury to decide- So I will not 

permit an opinion on credibility to be oiven based on 

someone's expertise, 

All right, please continue; 

9 
	

MR. NEWMAN 	I will move on, Judge. 

Q. 	Are you aware that Ms, Iovino is a cigarette smokcr? 

A, 	Hang on, ,She smokes a pack a week, yes. 

12 	Q 	Did you counsel her; to Stop smoking? 

13 	 Mk. tERBERT: ObjeCtion, 

14 	 THE COURT: You may ansWer. 

15 	A, 	I did net, 

16 	Q. 	Doesnt• smoking have an effect on the,  healing proceas 

17 	of the Soft tissue.? 

1 
	

A. 	Yes., it does‘ 

	

19. 	Q- As far as you know, Ms. lovino is Still A smoker 

	

.20 	today. correct? 

2:L 
	

A. 	I donit know. I didn't ask her. 

22 	Q. 	Now, you are aware that she was involved in a prtor 

23 	accident in 2008, correct? 

24 
	

A. 	Yes, we 'mentioned that before. 

Q. 	And are you aware that she sustained - en injury to her 

10 

11 

2,5 
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right shoulder? 

A. 	Yes, sir, 

Q. 	Do you know what kind of injury she sustained? 

A. 	The specifics of it, no. 

want you to assume hypothetically 

MR. NEWMAN: Judge, at this time I offer in 

evidence the redacted. Bill of Particulars from the prior 

accident, 

THE COURT: Any objection.? 

to 
	 MR. HERBERT: May I approach? 

ii 
	 THE COURT: Sure. 

(Off-the-record discussion held at the bench) 

l3 
	 THE COURT: All right, you may continue, 

14 ' 
	

Mr. Newman, 

15 
	 MR. NEWMAN: I'm sorry, Judge, 1 offered what's 

16 
	been stipulated into evidence. 

17 
	 THE COURT: Sure. What's the date of the 

1.8 
	exhibit? 

19 
	 MR. NEWMAN: February 5, 2009. 

20 
	 THE COURT: All right, that document is admitted 

21 
	into evidence by agieement of the parties. It will be 

22 
	Defendant's' Exhibit -- We will give it a letter. 

23 
	 What letter are We up to? 

24 
	 THE CLERK: That's H. 

25 
	 THE COURT That will be Exhibit H. Its in 
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evidence. Would you like it shown to the witness? 

KR. NEWMAN: Yes, please, Judge. 

THE COURT,: Sure. Why not. 

(Received and marked Defendant's Exhibit H in 

evidence) 

Q. 	DoctOr, please turn to Page 3.. It begins. at the top, 

"Jessica Iovino sustained the following injuries."' Are we on 

the same. page? 

A. 	Yes, sir, 

Q. 	Doctol:, I want you to assume that Ms. Tovino was 

involved in, an automobile actident on September 'I, 2008 for 

which she sustained injuries and. Made certain claints in that 

lawsuit of personal injuries, okay. 

A. 	Okay. 

0. 	I want you to assume that as a result of that accident 

in September of 2008, she claimed she,  sustained the. following 

Injuries, okay, doctor? 

A. 	The following that are listed or are you going to say? 

Q. 	Yes, I am going to read them, 

A. 	Okay. 

Q. 	"Traumatic injury and damage to the right shoulder, 

including but not limited to rotator cuff teat'  multiple 

igamentl  cartilage and tendon tears, multiple chondral 

ft a. .Lures requiring surgery which results in permanent and 

disfiguring scarring, joint diffusion and severe internal 

la 
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.derangement, 	tendonitis, the need for future surgeries.  and 

complete shoulder replacement," 

Doctor, that's a very serious injury) 	correct? 

A. 	Correct. 

Q. 	That 'S a very serious disabling and permanent medical 

condition, is it not, doctor? 

It could be, 

Q. 	And .she also claims in that September 8, 	2008 accident 

se sustained traumatic injury and damage to her head. including 

but not limited to closed head injury. 	A closed head injury is 

11 another-  word for a trauwatic brain injury, 	correct? 

A. 	17: am not sure if it meats a traumatic brain injury but 

there's CertaAnty injury to the head. 	I don't know it they are 

14 talking about a traumatic brain injury like you have in a 

15 football game. 	1 am not sure. 

16 Q- 	That'a exactly what I was going to ask. 

12 MR. HERBERT! 	May we approach, Your Honor? 

18 THE COURT; 	Yes, you may. 	Of course 

19 (Off-the-record discusSion held at the bench) 

20 THE COURT 	A31 right, I thought it appropriate 

21 to explain to the jury what a Bill of Particulars is. 

22 A Bill of Particulars is a legal document 

23 	prepared by an attorney in con ection with a cause of 

24 	action that's pending in a court. 	And what it is, a cause 

25 	Of, action pending in a court is commenced by filing a 



All right;  please continue, counsel. 

MR. 

 

NEWMAN 1 May we approach again? 

THE COURT; To the Court? 

MR, NEWMAN: Yes. 

THE COURT: Come up. 

Off-the-record discussion held at the bench) 

THE COURT: Please continue, counsel. 

MR. NEWMAN; Yes, Judge. 

And she was also claiming as a result of the 2008 

5 	what claims can be proven. 
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Complaint eXplaining whatever it is you want to explain is 

your reason tor bringing the action_ i Complaint can 

contain all kinds of allegations and it can be pled 

inconsistentLy, meaning it doesn't have to be consistent 

With itself. It can claim al sorts of things, but Ws 

	

6. 	not proof of anything. 1t1s indicating and giving notice 

to the othor. side what they are claiming. And then after 

that, the notice is given. Then the other side will know 

how to answer. 

	

10 	 A, Bill of Particulars, all it does is, it gives a 

	

11 	further explanation of some of the claims being made, but 

	

12- 	it proves absolutely none of the claims, 8o It is a legal 

document- It is not proof of any specific condition. It 

	

14 	is S ply an indication of what claims are being made, not 

25 	accident she suffered from post traumatic headaches and. post 
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concussion syndrome, correct? 

A. 	Yes. 

Q. 	And those can be serious and permanent conditions, 

correct, doctor? 

A. 	YeS. 

Q. 	She was also claiming significant injuries to her neck 

as a result of that September 2008 accident, correct.? 

A. 	I am )(poking at the injuries, but she is claiming 

injuries to her neck. That's for sure. 

10 	Q. 	C3-4, C5-6 bulges requiring trigger point injections 

11 	and nerve block surgeries? 

1 2 	A. 	Yes. 

13 	Q. 	mays significant, is it not, doctor? 

1 	A, 	Yes; 

15 	Q. 	And that may well be a permanent injury to her neck 
Hs 

16 	a result. of that September 2008 accident, correct, doctor? 

17 	A- 	It's possible- We just don't know enough 
of the 

18 	claims. It's a very broad thing. T. would have to sec more 

19.  information- 

This is what she is claiming happened to her as a 

21 	result of the September 2008 accident, - 
	doctor? 

22 	 MR. HERBERTt Objection, 

23 	 THE COURT: Well, he can't say that's correct, 

24 	 MR, NEWMAN: I withdraw that. 

25 	 THE COURT: Stop,  He cannot claim that (Mat' 
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Correct. This is admitted as a. Bill of Particulars 

submitted. I remind the jury that it is not proof of any 

injury. It is proof of claims that are made. Complaints 

and Bill of Particulars Can be internally inconsistent and 

it is allowed. It is just what you axe telling the other 

side you are claiming and then you get to the proof at some 

point later. 

	

8 	 Please continue. 

	

Q. 	As a result of that accident.. in September of 2008, she 

	

10 	Was also claiming serious injuries to her mid back where the 

	

11 	thoracic. Spine is, .correct? 

	

12 	 She is claiming injuries to the mid back- 

	

13 	Q. 	"Evidence of Abnormal alignment with loss of normal 

	

11 	thoracic spine derangement and vertebral subluxation complex", 

	

15 	that 	what she was claiminq. in het mid back, correct? 

	

16 	A. 	That is the, claim. 

	

17 	Q. 	Subluxation is a twisting of the mid back, correct? 

28 	A. No, 

19 	Q. 	Tall us what subluxation is? 

20 	A. 	Vertebral subluxation complex is a chiropractic term. 

21It's not really an orthopedic. term. So I never use that, 1 

22 	can tell you what the word "subliAxation" Means, but I don't 

23 	believe .any orthopedist uses it 

Q. 	All right, I will move on. She is also claiming 

25 	serious and protracted injuries Lo her lumbar spine, her low 
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back, as. a result of that 2008 accident, correct? 

A: 	She.  is definitely complaining of injuries to the lower 

back, yes. 

Q. 	She is also claiming, again, traumatic injury to her 

head 4s a result of that accident with headaches, diZziness, 

disorientation and -- 

-THE COURT: Hasn't that been answered already? 

ThE WITNESS Yes. 

Q. 
	I Just wanted to say neurplogical difficulties, 

r re 

A. 	Yes. 

Q. 	So all of those claims She was making as a result of 

he injuries from that September of 2008 accident, 

hypothetically, tAre serious, severe-, protracted and permanent, 

correct, doctor? 

A. 	They could be. These are claims, I don't Know the 

actual reality of the claims. As you pointed out before, sir, 

his is just a claim. T. dont know what the truth is about. 

Q. 	You testified that someone who has a shoulder surgery, 

the shoulder is never going to be the same again, correct? 

A. 	I said that? 

Q. 	Did you say that? 

A. 	Did T use those words? 

Q, 	I will ask. you again. You did the surgery on her left 

shoulde.r? 
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A. 	Yes, sir. 

	

Q, 	Is her Left shoulder going-  to be the same as IL was 

before the accident? 

	

A. 	It's very unlikely that it could: be a hundred percent. 

the same. 

. 

	

Q. 	And, hypothetically, if she had this surgery On ne27 

right shoulder as a result of the, September 2008 accident, her 

	

right shoulder was never going to be the same again, correc 

A. 	

' 

Within the limits of not knowing what that surgery 

W5, I would. say that usually after a person has an 

arthroscopic procedure It is hard to get a hUndred percent 

result. But I honestly do not know what the right shoulder 

surgery was, but I can speak clearly about the left-shoulder. 

	

Q. 	Right. But she had to have her surgery done to repait 

a rotatOr cuff tear, multiple ligament, cartilage and tendon 

tears and multiple chondraI fractures? 

	

14 	T dOn't know if that's actually what 
happened at the 

surgery, 

	

Q. 	Well, I want you to assume: hypothetically that's what 

it was that occurred as a result of the September 2008 

accident. She claims she Injured her right ShoUlder, had these 

Injuries and had surgery to address these. injuries. 

A. 

surgery for .chondra1 fractures. 	
' a very strange word, so 

dOn't knOW. If you showed me the operative report, then I 
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Correct, T. just don't know if she actually had 



327 

REDIRECT - DR. BERXDWITZ - HERBERT 	 298 

could clearly tell you what happened. As the judge pointed 

out, these are claims. I don't know what the reality is. They 

could be inconsistent,  

Let's just talk about a rotator auff tear, That's a 

serious injury? 

Yes, sir, 

Q. 	Arthroscopic surgery addresses the rotator cuff tear? 

A. 	Yes, 

Q. 	And however the rotator cuff tear was addressed in the 

10 	surgery is going to result in a condition where the tight 

11 	shoulder is never going to be as good again as It was before 

12 	that September 2008 accident, correct? 

13 	A. 	That's probably true- 

14 	 MR, NEWMAN Thank, doctor,  No further 

1,5 

 

questions. 

16 	 THE COURT: S5,r, are you ready? 

MR. HERBERT: Yee, Your Honor. 

18 	 THE COURT: Wait for Mr. Newman to have a seat. 

19 	 MR. HERBERT: Okay, 

20 	 MR. NEWMAN: Thank you, judge. 

21 	 THE COURT You may inquire. 

22 	REDIRECT EXAMINATION 

23 	BY MR. HERBERT: 

24 	Q. 	Doctor, jumping around a little bit because the 

25 	testimony got all jumped around, let's stay with the Bill of 
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Particulars for a second: from the 2008 accident 	Can you show 

Me anywhere on this document where Ms. Ibv3no signed this 

document, doctor? 

MR. NEWMANt Objection- 

A. 	I will let you know in a second. 

MR. NEWMAN: Objection, 

THE COURT: It's adMitLed by stipulation of 

counsel- Why don't counsel tell me, did the plaintiff sign 

	

9 	it? 

	

.0 	 MR. NEWMAN: Its verified by --, 

	

11 	 THE COURT:.  is that yes, no? 

	

1? 	 MR. NEWMAN: No, Judge, 

THE COURT: There IS no dispute that the 

	

14 	plaintiff didn't sign it. It was prepared by her attorney, 

	

15 	Q. 	Can you show me any medical records attached to this 

	

16 	Bill of Particulars from 2008, any medical records, any medical 

1.7 evidence? 

	

18 	A. 	No. 

	

19 	Q 	So these are attorney's words written for a claim, 

20 correct.? 

	

21 	A. 	That's right. 

	

22 	Q. 	Have you seen any priot 2008 Medd.cal. records by 

23 counsel? 

	

2.4 	A. 	No, sir  

	

25 	Q, 	have you seen any prior 2008 records regarding any of 
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injuries that were claimed, that were just in. the Bill of 

Particulars? 

A., 	Ni, I have not, 

Q, 	In your opinioi with your work experience testifying 

as an orthopedic-  surgeon and your past testifying, if there was 

a prior injury, a prior problem that the other counsel wanted 

to you see that would influence this case, wouldn't, the other 

counsel bring that to your attenticini doctor? 

MR, NEWMAN 	Objection. 

	

:0 	 THE COURT; Sustained. Do not answer that. 

nid counsel -- have you seen any medical evidence to 

	

12 	contradict anything yoi . said so far today or last Week 

	

13 	regarding, M. Iovino? 

	

14 	A. 	Absolutely not. I have seen nothing that would 

	

15 	cor.tracUct anything' I said regarding her )eft. shoulder. 

	

16 	Q 	Thank you, doctor. 

	

17 	 Now, doctor., you stated in one of your reports 

	

18 	believe believe. it was dated August 26.1  2013? 

A. 	Yes. 

	

20 	Q. 	You stated that she has diffieulty with stressful 

	

21 	types of activities. Do you see that, doctor? 

	

22 	A. 	Yes, I do. 

	

23 	Q. 	Now, I want to you assume that in February of 2013, 

	

24 	approximately, a year and a half after the accident, MS. Iwino 

	

5 	saw one Of the defendant's doctor's for examination. 
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MR. NEWMAN: Objection. 

Q. 	And during that examination -- 

THE COURT Suutained. 

Q. 	Now, doctor, I want you to assime that another doctor 

stated that Ms. lovino had difficulty with her activities with 

life. WOuld that be consistent with your medical records? 

MR. NEWMAN: Objection. 

THE COURT: Sustained. 

Q. 	Doctor, you are an orthopedic surgeon, correct? 

10 	A. 	Yes, sir. 

11 	Q. 	You are not a physical LI rapist? 

12 	A. 	N. 

13 	Q. 	You ar not a dhiropractor? 

14 	A. 	No, 

1 	Q. 	You perform urg.eies, correct? 

16 	A. 	Yes. 

27 	Q. 	You see patients? 

18 	A. 	Yes, 

19 	Q. 	Now, it's consistent when you treat as an orthopedic 

20 	surgeon that you don't treat every single day or every single 

21 week, correct? 

22 	A. 	Yes. 

23 	Q. 	How do patients normally treat with an orthopedic 

29 	geon? 

25 	 MR. NEWMAN: Objection. 



1 

11 

1.2 

13 

14 

13 

16

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

331 

REDIRECT - DR. BERKOWITZ - HERBERT 	 302 

THE COURT Could you say Lhat a little slower? 

MR. HERBERT: I'm sorry, Your Honor. 

THE COURT: Say it again. 

Q. 	You are an orthopedic surgeon, correct? 

A_ 	Yes, sir. 

Q. 	And you are not n physdcal therapist? 

A. 	I am not, 

Q. 	ROW do patients treat with an orthopedic surgeon? 

A. 	When they come to an orthopedic surgeon, they come 

with a specific complaint. That's why they go to the 

orthopedist. It's not about total body wellness, diabetes, 

it'sure 	about, 
Ert4y boulder hurts, my knee hurts, 

my baolc, hurts." And it's my job, 50 to speak, to take a 

history from that patient to rind out when this problem. 

started, what caused the problems, are there any associated 

problems that could affect this patient. And then I do a 

physical examination and then I hopefully have some 

radiological help like an MRI. Or if I don't have the testing 

that I need before rendering a clarity in terms of what to do 

next, I will send the patient for that test, commonly an MRI 

test, 

But if that's available to me, and I did my physical 

exam, and T. did my history and I h.ave come to a conclusion, I 

will then prescribe treatment for that probleM. That treatment 

could be non-operative, injection, therapy or it could be 

blood pr 
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operaLive. Sc the orthopedic surgeon does not focus on, you 

know, "Let's come back three times a week for therapy. What 

did you do today)  what did you do yesterday?" It's more of, 

"Do you have a prob3em that needs a surgical treatment or do 

you not? If you do not, then let me make sure you are getting 

the proper non-operative treatment, meaning I want you to go to 

this therapist. Or if you are already going to therapist, 

continue with your treatment." And then I see the patient back 

from time to time to see progress because sometimes a 

	

10 	non-operative course of treatment fails and then that patient 

	

11 	becomes an operative candidate. 

	

12 	Q. 	Counsel mentioned repetitive injury. T want you to 

	

13 	assume in this. case Ms. Iovino is, approximately, 35 years old. 

	

14 	How does age deal with repetitive injuries and -- 

	

15 	 MR_ NEWMAN: Objection. 

	

10 	 THE COURT: Did you complete the. question? 

	

17 	 MR. HERDERT: Almost. No, Your Honor. 

	

18 	 THE COURT: You didn't.? All right, finish the 

	

19 	question. I see there is an. objection. 

	

2.0 	Q. 	How does age in your opinion deal with a repetitive 

21 injury? 

	

22 	 THE COURT: You. May answer.  that. 

	

23 	A. 	Okay, the concept of a repetitive injury is almost 

	

24 	clear just by listening to the words, "'repetitive injury". So, 

	

25 	in. the words, you can develop an injury just from repetitive 
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over and over again use of a particular body part to do a 

particular job, whether its lifting heavy weights, moving 

furniture. People can get carpal tunnel syndrome, problems 

ith nerves, just from long term typing and moving the wrist, 

So by definition the longer a person is doing something 

repetitive, the more likely it is for a person to develop a 

repetitive injury problem. 

So the younger the patient is the less likely they 

have had enough time to develop a repetitive injury. So 

someone who.  is 60 is more likely to develop a repetitive injury 

from the same. If they started doing that action when they 

were 30, the chances are at 35 they are less likely to have 

developed it than if they were. 60 doing it over the course of 

so many years. So the 	the concept of how age fits tn. At 

35 Ms. Iovino is still a very young person and is less likely 

as opposed to someone who would be 55 or 60 doing the same 

thing. over all of those years to have developed a problem. 

Q. 	I want you also to assume that Ms. lovino is an 

admin7istrative assistant, clerical work, typing, filing, 

Working with a vice president. How does someone's job affect 

an injury? 

MR, NEKMAN: Objection. 

23 	 TIME COURT: You may answer, 

26 	A. 	Are you asking about the development of an injury or 

25 	making whatever injury worse? 

2 

10 

11 

12 

13 

11 

15 

16 

17 

1B 

19 

20 

21 

22 
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Q. 	Making it worse. 

A, 	Okay. So, number one, obviously if you have a torn 

rotator cuff Which would make it hard to lift, push, pull and 

:brow, that would be a more difficult situation: when you are 

doing that type of work. If you are doing typing, you can type 

very well with a rotator cuff tear. I am not Saying it's 

comfortable, but you can certainly type. But if you had to be 

lifting things onto the top shelf, you probably would have a 

	

9 	great deal of difficulty doing it. So if she is doing clerical 

	

10 	work, then a clerical work situation, if it does not require 

	

21 	lifting and repetitive pushing and pulling, is probably 

	

12 	something the patients can do with-some difficulty. But if 

	

13 	they are doing pushing, pulling, lifting, that kind of job 

	

14 	would be very difficult to do. 

	

15 	Q. 	Counsel mentioned earlier in your op report 31 

	

16 	minutes. That 31 minutes represents the operation taking 

place, the surgery, Correct? 

	

113 	A. 	Thatts the actual operatiVe t,ime, The patient was in 

	

19 	the room, as I said, for about an hour. 

	

20 	Q. 	'Snit it true, doctors  that an MRI is one piece of the 

	

21 	puzzle used' to diagnose a problem? 

	

22 	 MR. NEWMAN: Objection. 

	

23 	 THE COURT: Stop-  leading. Sustained, 

	

24 	Q. 	How is an MRI Used with your treatment of a patient, 

25 doctor? 
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MR. NEWMANt• improper redirect also. 

THE COURT May I have counsel at the bench for a 

moment, please. 

(Off-the-tecord discussion held at the bench) 

THE COURT: Mr. Herbert, you may Continue. 

Q. 	Doctor, how does an MRI fit into your diagnosis and 

teatment of a patient of yours? 

That's a very important point that i8,80 ething that 

needs clarification. An MRI is only one of the -- I witl 1480 

10 	the word -- weapons a doctor has to use in the Eight against 

11 	patient's problems. So, for instance, If a patient comes in 

12 	with a history and physical examination that basically their 

13 	shoulder is having difficulty and the MRI then supports that 

14 	diagnosis, that's a very helpfUi tool. But What. happens if the 

15 	patient has a lot of pain and on examination has a lot of 

16 	limitation and the MRI is negative, okay? Do you just say?  

17 	"Wellr  since the MRI is neoative, there is nothing wrong with 

IR 	you, just go home", If the patient says, "I have been 

1 	complaining tor months, I can't do this, I Can't do that". 

20 	And that happens very commonly_ And I always try to explain 

2i 	that in medicine, medicine is not lust about technology. If i 

22 	was just about MRI's, then why should I.bother seeing the 

23 patient? 

24 	 MR. NEWMAN: Ob3ection. Can the doctor answer 

25 	the question without making a speech? 
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THE COURT: Sustained. Take some control, 

Mr. Herbert, 

MR. HERBERT: Okay. 

Q. 	What part is the MRI when you treat patients compared 

to your diagnossr how does it play into it"? 

A. 	The MRI report can either support a obnclusion or it 

does not sUpport a conclusion, but it's only one weapon. So 

that if the patient -- it the patient has -- if the MR1 says 

the patient has a torn rotator cuff but the patient is using 

10 	their arm fully, then we ignore the MRI because the patient is 

21 	having no complaints. You don't operate on a patient that has 

12 	no symptoms. Similarly, in reverse, if the patient has 

la 	terrible symptoms and the MRI is negative, you don't. dismiss 

14 	the patient. The MRT is one weapon. History, physical 

15 	examination are still the most oriticaJ thing in a doctor's 

16 armamentariUm. 

17 	 THE COURT: In a doctor's what? 

18 	 THE WITNESS: Armamentarium. 

19 	 THE COURT; You can tell Us what that means. 

20 	That's not an SAT word and 1 don't know what it means. 

21 	 THE WITNESS: It simply means it is one weapon 

22 	an arsenal of weapons, an armementarium in a large group 

23 	weapons that we have at our disposal to try to come to the 

24 	right diagnosis and the right treatment. 

Q.. 	Thank you, doctor. 
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1 	 Doctor, counsel brought up the hospital records on 

C4O'S e' mination- What's the difference between an X ray and 

an [RI, doctor? 

A. 	An X ray is a radiological study that loses actual 

radiation and it penetrates through soft tissue and bone- It 

gives an image on the other side of the beam so that there is a 

Film, let's say, in the back of the shoulder, The beam comes 

to the front and it shows you basically bones. IL just shows 

you pictU es of bones. It doesn't show you anything, soft 

,issue, arteriea, nerves, brain tissue, cartilage, it shows you 

	

71 	none of those things. An MRI is absolutely zero radiation. 

	

12 	t's a magnetic. It has a radiation that's not harmful. It is 

	

13 	a magnetic device and it can image with great clarity soft 

	

14 	tissues. The problem is the ability of the reader to Interpret 

	

15 	those images. 

	

16 	C), 	Now, the hospital records, was there any MR1 test 

17 taken? 

	

IS 	Pr. 	Extremely rare but there's an MI that -- 

VIE COURT: That's a yes or no giestion. 

	

20 	 THE WITNESS: $o I don't know. 

21 	 THE COURT; That sheuld be your answer. 

22 	 THE WITNESS; Yes, sir., I don't know. 

23 	Q 	What part of the hospital records waS part of your 

21 	diagnosis and treatment on Ma. Lovino? 

25 	A, 	Zero. 
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Q. 	But looking at the hospital recOrds, would the 

hospital records be consistent with Ms. aovino's injury? 

MR. NEWMAN: Objection. 

THE COURT: YOU may answor that: 

A, 	What's consistent is -- 

THE COURT: Please identify the exhibit for the 

hospital record you are referring to. 

'OA, HERBERT: Can 1 approach the witness? 

THE COURT: You don't have it ih front of you? 

10 	 MR, HERBERT: I believe the witness does, Your 

11 	Honor. 

12 	 THE COURT: Please give that hospital record to 

1.3 	counsel, 

14 	 COURT OFFICER: Which hospital record are you 

15 	indicating? 

16 	 MR, HERBERT: Coney island- 

Q. 	'ic.)o}c.ing at whats been marked a& an exhibit in 

IS 	evidence - 

MR. HERBERT: It is actually not labeled, Your 

20 	Honor: 

21 	 THE COURT:, It's part of the doctor's Chart. is 

22 	the doctor 1 s Chart in evidence? 

23 	 MR. HERBERT: Yes your Honor. 

24 	 THE COURT: Including that record. 

25 	 MR, NEWMAN,: The Coney Island reCord is Exhibit 
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1. 
THE COURT; II:khibit 1. bet' s take Exhibit 1 in 

evidence and give it to the doctor. 

A. 	What is consistent is that, the patient complained 

ut pain in hex extremity. That's what.; consistent. 

Q, 	By "extremity", you mean the  arm! doctor'? 

A. 	Yes, loft upper extremity. 

MR. HERBERT: Thank you, YOUt Honor. I have no 

Further (vies iOns. 

	

.0 	 THE COURT 	Counsel. 

11 flJCROSS EXAMINATION 

	

12 	Y MR. OEWMAN: 

Doctor, Ms. Iovino didn't injuxe he iet rotabor cuff 

	

14 	in this,  accident, correct.? 

A. 	She: develOped an impingement problem, as a reult of 

	

16 	the accident and that is a rotator cuff isSu. 

	

17 	Q. 	Was the roLaLax cuff torn in this accident? 

A. Na si. 

	

19 	Q. 	And you didn't do any kind of repair -- uithdrawn. 

	

20 	 MR, NEWMAN: Thank you. r have no further 

	

21 	questions. 

	

22 	 MR. HERBERT No further questions. , Your Honor. 

	

23 	 THE COURT: Thank you. You may stop down at this 

	

24 	time and you aro free to. go. 

	

25 	 THE WITnaS: Thank yOu, sir. Do I leave all of 
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my records here? 

THE COURT: Let's take a moment. I want to 

conter with counsel about scheduling. So can you give me 

about five 	test  jurorS? 

Follow the officer. Dont discuss the case. 

Xeep an open mind. Form no judg 	tents, 

COURT OFFICER: Jury exiting. 

(At this time, the jury left the courtroom) 

THE COURT: Al? right, did we admit the doctor's 

records in evidence? 

MR. HERBERT: Yes, Your Honor. 

THE COURT: All right, so I guess we keep it 

theh 

M. HERBERT: Yes, Your. Honor. 

THE COURT: Which would mean he has to get it 

16 
	

back eventually, sooner rather than later, 

1/ 	 MR. HERBERT: Yes, You Ho r. 

18 

19 

20 

23 	will have paaintiff's counsel return the original file to 

22 	yoU in due course. You can work that out later. You are 

23 	fre to go. 

2 	 (WITNESS EXCUSED) 

25 	 THE COURT: That1 s the next order of business? 

7 

THE COURT: So I may have to put the onus 

of you to copy it and give him back the original. 

We will need to keep the records momentarily. 

n one 


	00000001
	00000002
	00000003
	00000004
	00000005
	00000006
	00000007
	00000008
	00000009
	00000010
	00000011
	00000012
	00000013
	00000014
	00000015
	00000016
	00000017
	00000018
	00000019
	00000020
	00000021
	00000022
	00000023
	00000024
	00000025
	00000026
	00000027
	00000028
	00000029
	00000030
	00000031
	00000032
	00000033
	00000034
	00000035
	00000036
	00000037
	00000038
	00000039
	00000040
	00000041
	00000042
	00000043
	00000044
	00000045
	00000046
	00000047
	00000048
	00000049
	00000050
	00000051
	00000052
	00000053
	00000054
	00000055
	00000056
	00000057
	00000058
	00000059
	00000060
	00000061
	00000062
	00000063
	00000064
	00000065
	00000066
	00000067
	00000068
	00000069
	00000070
	00000071
	00000072
	00000073
	00000074
	00000075
	00000076
	00000077
	00000078
	00000079
	00000080
	00000081
	00000082
	00000083
	00000084
	00000085
	00000086
	00000087
	00000088
	00000089
	00000090
	00000091
	00000092
	00000093
	00000094
	00000095
	00000096
	00000097
	00000098
	00000099
	00000100
	00000101
	00000102
	00000103
	00000104

